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June 6, 2019 
 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our 
letter to you dated February 8, 2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by the Charter Township of Kalamazoo are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted, except as discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, and the application 
of existing policies was not changed during 2018. We noted no transactions entered into by the Charter Township 
of Kalamazoo during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were fair value of investments, capital asset depreciation, 
and the pension and OPEB liabilities, and changes therein. 
 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of investments is based on market values of similar holdings and 
capital asset depreciation is based on the estimated useful lives of the Township’s capital assets. 
Management’s estimate of the net pension and OPEB liabilities, and changes therein, are based on 
actuarial assumptions and the use of specialists. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the fair value of investments, capital asset depreciation, and the pension and OPEB liabilities, and 
changes therein, in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
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Audit Adjustments 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction of the 
financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our auditing procedures. 
Management has recorded all of our proposed audit adjustments. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to 
the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated June 6, 2019. 
 
Other Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the Charter Township of Kalamazoo’s auditor. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention. 
 
We were engaged to report on the combining balance sheet and combining statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the nonmajor governmental funds (supplementary information), which 
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to the supplementary information 
accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, 
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the 
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. 
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison 
schedule, the schedule of changes in the Township’s net pension liability and related ratios, the schedule of 
pension contributions, the schedule of the changes in the Township’s net OPEB liability and related ratios, and the 
schedule of OPEB contributions, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s response to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
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We were engaged to report on the combining nonmajor fund financial statements (supplementary information), 
which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to the supplementary information 
accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, 
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the 
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. 
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
Communication Regarding Internal Control 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activity, each major fund, and the remaining fund information of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo as of and for 
the year ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, we considered the Charter Township of Kalamazoo’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Township's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township's 
internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. In 
addition, because of the inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override 
of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. However, as 
discussed below, we have identified deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Township’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the following 
deficiencies in the Charter Township of Kalamazoo’s internal control to be material weaknesses. 
 
Material audit adjustments and financial statement preparation: 
 

Criteria: All governmental units in Michigan are required to prepare financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This is the responsibility of management. The preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires internal controls over both (1) recording, 
processing, and summarizing accounting data (i.e. maintaining internal accounting records), and 
(2) reporting government-wide and fund financial statements, including the related notes to the financial 
statements (i.e. external financial reporting). 

 
Condition: We identified and proposed several material audit adjustments that management reviewed and 
approved. Adjustments were recorded to: 

• Adjust receivable accruals 
• Adjust payable accruals 
• Convert the fund-based data necessary to prepare the government-wide financial statements. 
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As is the case with many small and medium-sized governmental units, the Township relied on its 
independent external auditor to assist with the preparation of the financial statements, the related notes, 
and the management’s discussion and analysis as part of its external financial reporting process. Accordingly, 
the Township’s ability to prepare financial statements in accordance with GAAP is based, in part, on its 
reliance on its external auditor, who cannot, by definition, be considered part of the Township’s internal 
controls. This is a repeat finding. 
 
Cause: This condition was caused by the Township’s decision to outsource the preparation of its annual 
financial statements to the external auditor rather than incur the costs of obtaining the necessary training 
and expertise required for the Township to perform this task internally because outsourcing the task is 
considered more cost effective. 

 
Effect: The Township’s accounting records were initially misstated by amounts material to the financial 
statements. In addition, the Township lacks complete internal controls over the preparation of its financial 
statements in accordance with GAAP, and, instead, relies, at least in part, on assistance from its external 
auditor for assistance with this task. 

 
Auditor’s Recommendation: We recommend that management continue to monitor the relative costs and 
benefits of securing the internal or other external resources necessary to develop material adjustments and 
prepare a draft of the Township’s annual financial statements versus contracting with its auditor for these 
services. 

 
Management Response: Management has made an ongoing evaluation of the respective costs and benefits 
of obtaining internal or external resources, specifically for the preparation of financial statements, and has 
determined that the additional benefits derived from implementing such a system would not outweigh the 
costs incurred to do so. Management will continue to review the draft financial statements and notes prior 
to approving them and accepting responsibility for their content and presentation. 

 
Wages paid in advance: 
 

Criteria: Payroll should be paid on a regular basis to reflect time actually worked. 
 

Condition: Certain personnel are paid three days in advance of time worked.  
 
Effect: Certain Township employees were paid in advance, which does not reflect actual time worked.  
 
Cause: This has been a common payroll practice for the Township. 

 
Auditor’s Recommendation: We recommend that management review payroll processes and structure the 
payroll cycle to ensure that payroll is paid consistently for all individuals and is paid based on time previously 
worked. 

 
Management Response: The Township agrees with the recommendation and are working toward 
implementation of an updated policy. 
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The Charter Township of Kalamazoo’s responses to the internal control findings described above were not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on them. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of management, the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of 
Kalamazoo, and the State of Michigan Department of Treasury and is not intended to be, and should not be, used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
Township Board 
Charter Township of Kalamazoo, Michigan 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo, Michigan, 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Township’s basic financial statements, as listed in the contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo, Michigan, as of December 31, 2018, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
As discussed in Note 18 to the basic financial statements, the Township adopted GASB Statement No. 75 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions in 2018. Our opinions are 
not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Required supplementary information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the pension schedules, and the OPEB schedules, as 
listed in the contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Township’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from 
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 

 
 
June 6, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
The following discussion and analysis is intended as a narrative overview of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo’s 
operations over the fiscal year and its financial condition on December 31, 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the 
Township’s financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
• The Township’s total net position increased by $385,898 (3 percent) as a result of this year’s operations. 
• Of the $14,582,272 total net position reported, $-0- is available to be used to meet the Township’s ongoing obligations 

to its citizens and customers, without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal 
requirements. 

• The General Fund's unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year was $4,228,506, which represents 56 percent 
of the actual total General Fund expenditures for the fiscal year. 

 
Overview of the financial statements 
 
The Township’s annual report is comprised of four parts: management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial 
statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that presents combining statements for 
nonmajor governmental funds. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views 
of the Township: 
 
• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short-term 

information about the Township’s overall financial status. 
• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the Township government, 

reporting the Township’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. 
o Governmental funds statements explain how general government services, like public works and public safety, 

were financed in the short-term, as well as what remains for future spending. 
o Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the activities the 

government operates like a business. The Township has one proprietary fund to account for its golf course. 
o Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the Township acts 

solely as an agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources in question belong. 
 
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide 
more detailed data. The financial statements are followed by sections of required supplementary information and other 
supplementary information that further explain and support the information in the financial statements. 
 
A comparative analysis of the government-wide financial statements for 2018 and 2017 is also presented. 
 
Government-wide financial statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements report information about the Township as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Township’s assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses 
are accounted for in the Statement of Activities, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
The two government-wide statements report the Township’s net position and how it has changed. Net position (the difference 
between the Township’s assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources) is one 
way to measure the Township’s financial health, or position. 
 
• Over time, increases or decreases in the Township’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is 

improving or deteriorating, respectively. 
• To assess the overall health of the Township, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors, such as changes in 

the Township’s property tax base and the condition of the Township’s roads. 
 
The government-wide financial statements of the Township are divided into two categories: 
 
• Governmental activities - These activities include functions most commonly associated with government (e.g., general 

government, public safety, public works, etc.). Property taxes and intergovernmental revenues generally fund these 
services. 

• Business-type activities - The Township charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of operating the golf course. 
 
Fund financial statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Township’s most significant funds - not the 
Township as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the Township uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and 
spending for particular purposes. 
 
• Some funds are required by state law and by grant agreements. 
• The Township Board establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (like street, water, 

and sewer improvements) or to show that it is properly using certain taxes and other revenues (like street lighting and 
recycling revenues). 

 
The Township has three types of funds: 
 
• Governmental funds. Most of the Township’s basic services are included in its governmental funds, which focus on 

(1) how cash, and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash, flows in and out, and (2) the balances left 
at year end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-
term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the Township’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term 
focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information that explains the relationship between 
them. 

 
• Proprietary funds. Services for which the Township charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds. 

Proprietary funds statements, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term and short-term financial 
information. 

 
• Fiduciary funds. These funds are used to account for the collection and disbursement of resources, primarily taxes, for 

the benefit of parties outside the Township. The Township is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in the 
fiduciary funds are used for their intended purpose. The Township’s fiduciary balances are reported in a separate 
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities. We exclude these activities from the Township’s government-wide 
financial statements because the Township cannot use these assets to finance its operations. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWNSHIP AS A WHOLE 
 
Net position 
Total net position at the end of the fiscal year was $14,582,272. However, $18,182,677 of this total is invested in capital assets 
and $2,483,507 is restricted for public safety, public works, capital outlay, and debt service. Consequently, unrestricted net 
position has a deficit balance of $6,083,912. 
 

    

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Current and other assets 19,000,732$  18,539,858$  21,395$         18,177$         19,022,127$  18,558,035$  

Capi ta l  assets 17,967,044    18,272,721    279,895         290,817         18,246,939    18,563,538    

Tota l  assets 36,967,776    36,812,579    301,290         308,994         37,269,066    37,121,573    

Deferred outflows  of resources 813,042         1,197,695      -                   -                   813,042         1,197,695      

Current and other l iabi l i ties 7,280,460      8,333,590      -                   -                   7,280,460      8,333,590      

Long-term debt 8,942,638      9,867,268      -                   -                   8,942,638      9,867,268      

Tota l  l iabi l i ties 16,223,098    18,200,858    -                   -                   16,223,098    18,200,858    

Deferred inflows  of resources 7,276,738      6,381,922      -                   -                   7,276,738      6,381,922      

Net pos i tion:
Net investment in

capi ta l  assets 17,902,782    18,208,459    279,895         290,817         18,182,677    18,499,276    
Restricted 2,483,507      2,808,041      -                   -                   2,483,507      2,808,041      

Unrestricted (defici t) (6,105,307)     (7,589,006)     21,395           18,177           (6,083,912)     (7,570,829)     

Tota l  net pos i tion 14,280,982$  13,427,494$  301,290$       308,994$       14,582,272$  13,736,488$  

Condensed financial information
Net position

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Totals

 
 
Changes in net position 
The Township’s total revenues for 2018 were $10,929,434. Approximately 45 percent of the Township’s revenues comes 
from property taxes and 28 percent represents charges for services. About 21 percent of total revenues comes from state 
revenue sharing. 
 
The total cost of all the Township’s programs for 2018, covering a wide range of services, totaled $10,543,536. About 
66 percent of the Township’s total costs relates to public safety, while general government and public works represent 
15 percent and 17 percent, respectively. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 

   

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Net pos i tion, beginning of year*
As  previous ly reported 13,427,494$  16,542,405$  308,994$       313,091$       13,736,488$  16,855,496$  
Cumulative effect of change 

in accounting principle 459,886         -                 -                 -                 459,886         -                 

As  restated 13,887,380    16,542,405    308,994         313,091         14,196,374    16,855,496    

Program revenues :
Charges  for services 3,055,280      2,721,544      10,000           9,220             3,065,280      2,730,764      
Operating grants 273,186         360,763         -                   -                   273,186         360,763         
Capi ta l  grants 4,999             117,957         -                   -                   4,999             117,957         

Genera l  revenues :
Property taxes 4,876,585      4,014,324      -                   -                   4,876,585      4,014,324      
State grants 2,274,915      2,218,497      -                   -                   2,274,915      2,218,497      
Loca l  community s tabi l i zation 132,709         156,361         -                   -                   132,709         156,361         
Franchise fees 184,744         194,727         -                   -                   184,744         194,727         

Investment income 116,824         104,854         192                -                   117,016         104,854         

Tota l  revenues 10,919,242    9,889,027      10,192           9,220             10,929,434    9,898,247      

Expenses :
Genera l  government 1,535,531      1,583,094      -                   -                   1,535,531      1,583,094      
Publ ic safety 6,953,752      6,887,065      -                   -                   6,953,752      6,887,065      
Publ ic works 1,746,160      4,221,831      -                   -                   1,746,160      4,221,831      
Community and economic

development 81,643           81,269           -                   -                   81,643           81,269           
Cul ture and recreation 8,959             16,726           17,896           13,317           26,855           30,043           

Interest on debt 199,595         213,953         -                   -                   199,595         213,953         

  

Tota l  expenses 10,525,640    13,003,938    17,896           13,317           10,543,536    13,017,255    

Changes  in net pos i tion 393,602$       (3,114,911)$   (7,704)$          (4,097)$          385,898$       (3,119,008)$   

Net pos i tion, end of year 14,280,982$  13,427,494$  301,290$       308,994$       14,582,272$  13,736,488$  

Condensed financial information
Changes in net position

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Totals

 
 
* As described in Note 18 to the financial statements, the Township adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans during 2018. In connection 
with the adoption of this statement, the Township recorded a cumulative effect of a change in an accounting principle in the 
amount of $459,886 in 2018. As this pronouncement has been adopted prospectively, there was no restatement of the 2017 
financial position or results of operations. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Township’s net position by $393,602 in 2018 compared to a 
$3,114,911 decrease in 2017. The Township’s revenues increased by $1,030,215, due primarily to an $862,261 increase in 
property taxes as the millage was increased in the Road Debt Fund. Total governmental expenses were $2,478,298 lower in 
2018 compared to 2017. The difference is primarily due to a $2,475,671 decrease in public works expense, related to road 
projects funded by bonds received in the previous year. 
 
The total cost of governmental activities this year was $10,525,640. After subtracting the direct charges to those who 
directly benefited from the programs ($3,055,280) and other operating and capital grants ($278,185), the “public benefit” 
portion covered by property taxes, state revenue sharing, and other general revenues was $7,192,175 in 2018. 
 
Business-type activities. Charges for services in the business-type activities for 2018 were $10,000 compared to $9,220 last 
year. Expenses were $4,579 higher than the prior year. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWNSHIP’S FUNDS 
 
At December 31, 2018, the Township’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $11,094,570, an increase 
of $52,725 over the prior year. 
 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Township. General Fund revenues of 8,033,768 were lower than 
expenditures ($7,524,651) and transfers out ($671,350) by $162,233 in 2018. Fund balance at year end was $4,228,506. 
 
The Sewer Improvement Fund revenues, comprised of assessments, state grants, and interest, totaled $320,668, while 
expenditures totaled $301,443. As a result, the fund balance increased by $19,225. The fund balance was $3,438,435 at the 
end of 2018. 
 
The Road Bond Fund, had expenditures amounting to $1,062,402, revenues of $1,099,638, and transfers in of $13,014, 
which resulted in a $50,250 increase in fund balance. The fund had an ending fund balance of $68,755. 
 
The net position of the Golf Course Fund, the sole proprietary fund, decreased by $7,704, as expenses of $17,896 exceeded 
revenues of $10,192 for the year. 
 
General Fund budgetary highlights 
 
The Township amended the original General Fund budget, adopted by the Township Board for 2018, by increasing 
expenditures by $9,500. 
 
Revenues were $579,704 more than anticipated, as state grants and other revenues exceeded the amounts budgeted by 
$364,967 and $123,362, respectively. Actual expenditures were $738,394 less than budgeted and transfers out were 
$13,000 more than anticipated. These conditions resulted in a $1,305,098 positive budget variance with a $162,233 
decrease in fund balance for the year, compared to a $1,467,331 budgeted decrease in fund balance. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital assets 
At December 31, 2018, the Township had invested $18,246,939, net of depreciation, in various capital assets, including its 
land, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure. 
 
This year’s major capital asset additions included: 

• $42,879 for new fire vehicles 
• $77,670 for police vehicles. 
• $57,150 for a new roof on Westwood fire station 

 
More detailed information about the Township’s capital assets is presented in Note 5 of the notes to the basic financial 
statements. 
 
Debt 
At the end of the fiscal year, the Township had bonds payable with balances outstanding in the amount of $8,942,638, a 
decrease of $924,630. 
 
Other long-term obligations consisted of a liability for compensated absences of $416,767, net pension liability of 
$2,773,873, and a net other postemployment benefit liability of $3,116,939. 
 
More detailed information about the Township’s long-term debt is presented in Note 7, Note 13, and Note 14 of the notes 
to the basic financial statements. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 
In 2019, the Township plans to primarily use current revenues to provide essential services in order to maintain current 
fund balances. Property tax revenues are expected to increase slightly in 2019. The Township continues to review all budget 
areas for opportunities to reduce expenditures. 
 
CONTACTING THE TOWNSHIP’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Township’s finances to its citizens, customers, 
investors, and creditors and to demonstrate the Township’s accountability for the resources it receives. Questions 
regarding any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 
 

Dexter A. Mitchel, Township Manager Phone: (269) 381-8085 
Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI  49004 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2018

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Totals

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash 10,883,928$      12,375$              10,896,303$   
Investments 3,379,430          -                      3,379,430        
Inventory -                      9,020                  9,020                
Receivables 4,649,441          -                      4,649,441        
Prepaid items 30,605                -                      30,605             

Total current assets 18,943,404        21,395                18,964,799     
 

Noncurrent assets:
Receivables 57,328                -                      57,328             
Capital assets not being depreciated 504,748              171,000              675,748           
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 17,462,296        108,895              17,571,191     

Total noncurrent assets 18,024,372        279,895              18,304,267     

Total assets 36,967,776        301,290              37,269,066     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension amounts 770,604              -                      770,604           
Deferred OPEB amounts 42,438                -                      42,438             

Total deferred outflows of resources 813,042              -                      813,042           

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Payables 725,386              -                      725,386           
Unearned operating assessment revenue 247,495              -                      247,495           
Current portion of long-term debt 900,000              -                      900,000           

Total current liabilities 1,872,881          -                      1,872,881        

Noncurrent liabilities:
8,042,638          -                      8,042,638        

Compensated absences 416,767              -                      416,767           
Net pension liability 2,773,873          -                      2,773,873        

3,116,939          -                      3,116,939        

Total noncurrent liabilities 14,350,217        -                      14,350,217     

Total liabilities 16,223,098        -                      16,223,098     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property tax revenues levied for the subsequent year 5,030,570          -                      5,030,570        
Assessments levied for the subsequent year 1,839,280          -                      1,839,280        
Deferred pension amounts 406,888              -                      406,888           

Total deferred inflows of resources 7,276,738          -                      7,276,738        

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 17,902,782        279,895              18,182,677     
Restricted for:

Public safety 300,389              -                      300,389           
Public works 277,866              -                      277,866           
Capital outlay 1,836,497          -                      1,836,497        
Debt service 68,755                -                      68,755             

Unrestricted (deficit) (6,105,307)         21,395                (6,083,912)      

Total net position 14,280,982$      301,290$           14,582,272$   
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Noncurrent portion of long-term debt

Net OPEB liability

See notes to financial statements



Charter Township of Kalamazoo
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year ended December 31, 2018

Operating Capital
Charges for grants and grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses services contributions contributions activities activities Totals
Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:

General government 1,535,531$     588,010$          -$                   -$                   (947,521)$           (947,521)$      
Public safety 6,953,752       1,709,260         10,973               4,999                 (5,228,520)          (5,228,520)     
Public works 1,746,160       743,620            262,213            -                     (740,327)              (740,327)         
Community and economic development 81,643            14,390               -                     -                     (67,253)                (67,253)           
Recreation and culture 8,959              -                     -                     -                     (8,959)                  (8,959)             
Interest on long-term debt 199,595          -                     -                     -                     (199,595)              (199,595)         

Total governmental activities 10,525,640     3,055,280         273,186            4,999                 (7,192,175)          (7,192,175)     

Business-type activities - golf course 17,896            10,000               -                     -                     (7,896)$                (7,896)             

Totals 10,543,536$  3,065,280$       273,186$          4,999$               (7,192,175)          (7,896)                  (7,200,071)     

General revenues:
      Property taxes 4,876,585            -                       4,876,585       
      State grants 2,274,915            -                       2,274,915       
      Local community stabilization 132,709               -                       132,709          
      Franchise fees 184,744               -                       184,744          
      Investment income 116,824               192                       117,016          

               Total general revenues 7,585,777            192                       7,585,969       

Changes in net position 393,602               (7,704)                  385,898          

Net position - beginning 13,887,380         308,994               14,196,374     

Net position - ending 14,280,982$       301,290$             14,582,272$  

-12-

Program revenues
Net (expenses) revenues and

changes in net position

See notes to financial statements



Charter Township of Kalamazoo
BALANCE SHEET - governmental funds
December 31, 2018

 Total
 Sewer Road Nonmajor governmental

General Improvement Bond funds funds
ASSETS
Cash 2,660,112$        3,435,060$          554,023$           4,234,733$        10,883,928$          
Investments 3,379,430          -                        -                      -                      3,379,430               
Receivables 3,128,580          115,174                664,148             798,867             4,706,769               

Total assets 9,168,122$        3,550,234$          1,218,171$        5,033,600$        18,970,127$          

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Payables 419,872$           45,610$                -$                    208,529$           674,011$                
Unearned operating assessment revenue -                      -                        -                      247,495             247,495                  

Total liabilities 419,872             45,610                  -                      456,024             921,506                  

Deferred inflows of resources:
Property tax revenues levied for the subsequent year 3,881,154          -                        1,149,416          -                      5,030,570               
Assessments levied for the subsequent year 638,590             -                        -                      1,200,690          1,839,280               
Unavailable special assessment revenue -                      66,189                  -                      18,012                84,201                     

Total deferred inflows of resources 4,519,744          66,189                  1,149,416          1,218,702          6,954,051               

Fund balances:
Restricted for:

Public safety -                      -                        -                      236,127             236,127                  
Public works -                      -                        -                      277,866             277,866                  
Capital outlay -                      -                        -                      1,836,497          1,836,497               
Debt service -                      -                        68,755                -                      68,755                     

Committed for culture and recreation -                      -                        -                      9,702                  9,702                       
Assigned for: 

Public works -                      3,438,435            -                      459,018             3,897,453               
Capital outlay 539,664             539,664                  

Unassigned 4,228,506          -                        -                      -                      4,228,506               

Total fund balances 4,228,506          3,438,435            68,755                3,358,874          11,094,570             

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances 9,168,122$        3,550,234$          1,218,171$        5,033,600$        18,970,127$          

Reconciliation of the balance sheet to the statement of net position:

Total fund balance - total governmental funds 11,094,570$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities  in the statement of net position (page 11)
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities  are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 17,967,044             

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and 
are deferred in the funds. 84,201                     

Certain pension and OPEB contributions and unamortized changes in pension plan net position
are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net position
but are not reported in the funds. 763,550                  

Certain pension unamortized changes in pension plan net position
are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the statement of net position
but are not reported in the funds. (357,396)                 

Interest payable, related to long-term liabilities, is not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, is not reported in the funds. (51,375)                   

Prepaid items are not financial resources and, therefore,  are not reported in the funds 30,605                     

Long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current period and are not
reported in the funds:

Long-term debt (8,942,638)              
Compensated absences (416,767)                 
Net pension liability (2,773,873)              
Net OPEB liability (3,116,939)              

Net position of governmental activities 14,280,982$          

See notes to financial statements
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES - governmental funds
Year ended December 31, 2018

Total
Sewer Road Nonmajor governmental

General Improvement Bond funds funds
REVENUES
Property taxes 4,019,102$        -$                       1,067,307$        -$                    5,086,409$             
Federal grants 334                      -                         -                      5,000                  5,334                       
State grants 2,421,967          250,485                29,391                11,728                2,713,571               
Intergovernmental -                      -                         -                      5,400                  5,400                       
Fines and forfeitures 26,728                -                         -                      8,386                  35,114                     
Licenses and permits 308,143              -                         -                      -                      308,143                   
Charges for services 475,851              9,000                     -                      -                      484,851                   
Interest and rentals 98,766                53,588                  2,940                  70,833                226,127                   
Other 682,877              7,595                     -                      1,461,471          2,151,943               

Total revenues 8,033,768          320,668                1,099,638          1,562,818          11,016,892             

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 1,481,774          -                         -                      -                      1,481,774               
Public safety 5,890,647          -                         -                      215,052              6,105,699               
Public works 17,502                301,443                527                      1,161,561          1,481,033               
Community and economic development 81,643                -                         -                      -                      81,643                     
Recreation and culture 5,928                  -                         -                      -                      5,928                       

Capital outlay 47,157                -                         -                      632,996              680,153                   
Debt service:

Principal -                      -                         850,000              64,262                914,262                   
Interest -                      -                         211,875              1,800                  213,675                   

Total expenditures 7,524,651          301,443                1,062,402          2,075,671          10,964,167             

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 509,117              19,225                  37,236                (512,853)            52,725                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in -                      -                         13,014                681,350              694,364                   
Transfers out (671,350)            -                         -                      (23,014)               (694,364)                 

Net other financing sources (uses) (671,350)            -                         13,014                658,336              -                            

(162,233)            19,225                  50,250                145,483              52,725                     

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 4,390,739          3,419,210             18,505                3,213,391          11,041,845             

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 4,228,506$        3,438,435$          68,755$              3,358,874$        11,094,570$           

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

See notes to financial statements
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES - governmental funds  (Continued)
Year ended December 31, 2018

Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances to the statement of activities:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds (page 14) 52,725$                   

Amounts reported for governmental activities  in the statement of 
activities (page 12) are different because:

Capital assets:
Assets acquired 663,748                   
Provision for depreciation (884,135)                 
Basis of assets disposed (85,290)                    

Principal repayments on long-term debt 914,262                   

Changes in other assets/liabilities:
Decrease in prepaid expenditures (405)                         
Decrease in interest payable 3,712                       
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources - pension plan interest

projections compared to actual (563,748)                 
Increase in deferred outflows of resources - pension contributions

made after plan year end (22,010)                    
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources - change in assumptions (66,366)                    
Increase in deferred inflows of resources - difference between

expected and actual - pension 4,650                       
Increase in deferred inflows of resources - difference between

expected and actual - OPEB 42,438                     
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources (47,114)                    
Increase in net OPEB liability (72,119)                    
Decrease in net pension liability 427,176                   
Decrease in compensated absences 15,710                     
Decrease in other accrued liabilities 10,368                     

Change in net position of governmental activities 393,602$                

See notes to financial statements
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - proprietary fund
December 31, 2018

Golf Course
Fund

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash 12,375$             
Inventory 9,020                 

Total current assets 21,395               

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated - land 171,000             
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 108,895             

Total noncurrent assets 279,895             

Total assets 301,290             

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 279,895             
Unrestricted 21,395               

Total net position 301,290$          

See notes to financial statements
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN
NET POSITION - proprietary fund
Year ended December 31, 2018

Golf  Course
Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Rentals 10,000$             

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating and maintenance costs 6,974                 
Depreciation 10,922               

Total operating expenses 17,896               

OPERATING LOSS (7,896)                

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest 192                    

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (7,704)                

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 308,994             

NET POSITION - ENDING 301,290$          

See notes to financial statements

-17-



Charter Township of Kalamazoo
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - proprietary fund
Year ended December 31, 2018

Golf Course
Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 10,000$             
Payments to suppliers (6,974)                

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,026                 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest 192                    

NET CHANGE IN CASH 3,218                 

CASH - BEGINNING 9,157                 

CASH - ENDING 12,375$             

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating loss (7,896)$             
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 10,922               

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,026$               
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See notes to financial statements



Charter Township of Kalamazoo
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - agency funds
December 31, 2018

ASSETS
Cash 544,055$     
Investments 3,400,000    

Total assets 3,944,055    

LIABILITIES
Due to others 3,944,055$  
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo, Michigan (the Township), conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting principles) as 
applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies. 
 
Reporting entity: 
The Township is governed by an elected seven-member board. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, 
these financial statements present only the Township, located in Kalamazoo County, as management has determined that 
there are no other entities for which the Township is financially accountable. 
 
Government-wide and fund financial statements: 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report 
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Township. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from 
these statements. Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset 
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program 
revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the proprietary fund, and fiduciary funds, even though 
the latter are excluded from government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and the major 
enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation: 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay 
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Township generally considers revenues to be available if they are 
expected to be collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, expenditures relating to compensated 
absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
State grants, licenses and permits, charges for services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the 
portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as 
revenues of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable only when cash is received by the 
Township. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued): 
The Township reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the Township’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the Township, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are derived primarily property taxes and 
state shared revenue. 

 
The Sewer Improvement Fund, a capital project fund, accounts for the construction or purchase of major sewer 
improvements. Revenues are primarily derived from special assessments. 

 
The Road Bond Fund, a debt service fund, accounts for the debt service payments related to bonds issued to 
improve the Township’s roads. Revenues are primarily derived from property taxes. 

 
The Township also reports fiduciary funds, which account for assets held by the Township as an agent for individuals, 
private organizations, and other governments. The Township currently reports two agency funds (The Tax Collection Fund 
and the Agency Fund). Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of 
results of operations. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges 
provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general 
revenues include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s 
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary fund relate to charges to customers for 
services. Operating expenses for the proprietary fund include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 
 
Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position or equity: 

Cash and investments - Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with a maturity of three months or less when acquired. Investments are reported at fair value. 
Pooled investment income is proportionately allocated to all funds. 

 
Receivables and payables - In general, outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other 
funds.” No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded, as the Township considers all receivables to be 
fully collectible. 

 
Prepaid items - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as 
prepaid items in the government-wide financial statements. 

 
Capital assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., sewer and water 
systems), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Township as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than $2,000 ($10,000 for infrastructure assets) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are 
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at acquisition value as of the date received. Governments can elect to account for infrastructure assets 
either retroactively to June 15, 1980, or prospectively. The Township has elected to account for infrastructure 
assets prospectively, beginning January 1, 2004. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position or equity (continued): 

Capital assets (continued) - Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful 
lives: 

 
Buildings 40 - 60 years
Improvements 15 - 30 years
Vehicles 5 - 10 years
Equipment 3 - 15 years
Sewer infrastructure 50 - 75 years  

 
Deferred outflows of resources - The statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element reflects a decrease in net position that applies to a future 
period. The related expense will not be recognized until a future event occurs. The Township has two items in this 
category. The deferred outflows, related to the defined benefit pension plan, are discussed in Note 13. The 
deferred outflows, related to the other postemployment benefit plan, are discussed in note 14. No deferred 
outflows of resources affect the governmental funds financial statements. 
 
Compensated absences - It is the Township’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and 
vacation pay benefits. Vested compensated absences are accrued when earned in the government-wide and 
proprietary funds financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only for 
employee terminations as of year end. 

 
Unearned revenue - Unearned revenue represents resources related to operating assessments, which have not yet 
been earned, due to performance of service. 

 
Deferred inflows of resources - The statement of net position and the governmental funds balance sheet include a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element reflects an increase 
in net position that applies to a future period. The related revenues will not be recognized until a future event 
occurs. The Township has four items that are included in this category: property taxes, special assessments, 
unavailable revenues, and items related to the defined benefit pension plan. Property tax revenues and certain 
operating special assessments, which are levied to finance the following period's budget, are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that they were intended to finance. Other special assessment 
revenue and grant proceeds, which are not available (collected later than 60 days after the end of the Township's 
fiscal year) are deferred in the governmental funds and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the 
assessments become available. The deferred inflows, related to the defined benefit pension plan, are discussed in 
Note 13.  

 
Pension - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, 
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the pension plan and additions to/deductions 
from the pension plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
pension plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. The Township 
and its defined pension plan share the same year-end date. Accordingly, the Township has elected to measure its 
net pension liability as of the prior December 31. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position or equity (continued): 

Postemployment benefits other than pensions - For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Township of Kalamazoo Township Retiree Health Care Plan and additions 
to/deductions from the plan fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported 
by the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
 
Net position - Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The Township reports three categories of net position, as follows: (1) Net 
investment in capital assets consists of net capital assets reduced by outstanding balances of any related debt 
obligations and deferred inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets, and increases by balances related to those assets; (2) Restricted net position is considered restricted if its use 
is constrained to a particular purpose. Restrictions are imposed by external organizations, such as federal or state 
laws or buyers of the Township’s debt. Restricted net position is reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources related to the restricted assets; (3) Unrestricted net position consists of all other net position that does not 
meet the definition of the above components and is available for general use by the Township. 

 
Net position flow assumption - Sometimes, the Township will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both 
restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to 
report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary funds 
financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be 
applied. It is the Township’s policy to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before 
unrestricted - net position is applied. 

 
Fund equity - In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance for amounts 
that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. Restricted fund balance is reported when externally imposed constraints are placed on the use 
of resources by grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments. Committed fund balance is 
reported for amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action 
of the Township Board. A formal resolution of the Township Board is required to establish, modify, or rescind a 
fund balance commitment. The Township Board retains the authority to assign fund balances. Unassigned fund 
balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. When the Township incurs an expenditure for purposes 
for which various fund balance classifications can be used, it is the Township’s policy to use the restricted fund 
balance first, followed by committed fund balance, then assigned fund balance, and, finally, unassigned fund 
balance. 

 
Property tax revenue recognition - Property taxes are levied each December 1 (lien date) on the taxable valuation of 
property (as defined by State statutes) located in the Township as of the preceding December 31. Property taxes are 
considered delinquent on March 1 of the following year, at which time interest and penalties are assessed. Although 
the Township’s 2017 ad valorem taxes are levied and collectible on December 1, 2017, it is Township’s policy to 
recognize revenue from that tax levy in the current year, when the proceeds are budgeted and made available for the 
financing of operations. 

 
Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
Budgetary information - Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for 
the Township’s General Fund and special revenue funds. The budget document presents information by fund, function, and 
department. The legal level of budgetary control adopted by the governing body is the function level. Amounts 
encumbered for purchase orders, contracts, etc., are not tracked during the year. Budget appropriations are considered to 
be spent once the goods are delivered or the services are rendered. 
 
Excess of expenditures over appropriations - During the year, the Township incurred reportable expenditures in a budgeted 
fund, which were in excess of the amounts appropriated, as follows: 
 

Final
Fund Function budget Actual Variance

General Transfers out 658,350$       671,350$       13,000$           
 
NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
At December 31, 2018, cash and investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements, as follows: 
 

Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
activities activities activities Totals

Financial statements:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,883,928$          12,375$                  544,055$               11,440,358$    
Investments 3,379,430              -                           3,400,000              6,779,430         

Totals 14,263,358$          12,375$                  3,944,055$            18,219,788$    
 

Notes to financial statements:  
Deposits 11,440,358$    
Investments 6,779,430         

Total 18,219,788$     
 
Deposits - Michigan Compiled Laws, Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) and the Township’s investment policy 
authorize the Township to make deposits in the accounts of federally-insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan 
0associations that have an office in Michigan. 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the Township will not be able to recover 
its deposits. The Township’s investment policy does not specifically address custodial credit risk for deposits. At December 31, 
2018, $8,685,326 of the Township’s bank balances of $12,412,416 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was 
uninsured and uncollateralized. 
 
Investments - State statutes and the Township’s investment policy authorize the Township to invest in a) obligations of the 
U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities; b) commercial paper, with two (2) highest rate classifications by at least two (2) 
rating services, maturing not later than 270 days; c) repurchase agreements, collateralized by U.S. governmental securities; 
d) bankers’ acceptances; e) mutual funds composed of otherwise legal investments; and f) qualified investment pools. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments at December 31, 2018, which are reported at fair value, consist of the following: 
 

Governmental activities:
Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System - Michigan,
a local investment pool established under Michigan
state statutes for participating Michigan municipalities 5,290,631$   

Commercial Paper 744,869        

Government-sponsored enterprises:
$535,000 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Fixed Rate
Bonds - paying interest at 1.10% and maturing 03/23/19 533,384        

$331,000 Federal National Mortgage Association Remic Trust
Bonds - paying interest at 2.50% and maturing 12/25/42 210,546        

Total investments 6,779,430$    
 
The Township’s investments are summarized, as follows: 
 

Fair Rating
value Maturity Rating organization

CLASS - Michigan investment pool 5,290,631$   N/A AAAm S&P
Commercial paper 744,869        2019 A1+ S&P
Government-sponsored enterprises:

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Fixed Rate Bonds 533,384        2019 Aaa Moody's
Federal National Mortgage Association Remic Trust Bonds 210,546        2042 Aaa Moody's

6,779,430$   

Investment type

 
 

 
The Township’s investments are subject to several types of risk, which are discussed below: 
 
Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. 
broker-dealer) to a transaction, the Township will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party. The Township’s investment policy does not contain requirements that would 
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. As of December 31, 2018, all of the Township’s investments, 
excluding investments in investment pools and repurchase agreements, are subject to custodial credit risk as they are 
uninsured, unregistered, and held by the same counterparty that purchased the securities for the Township. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 
This risk is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Township’s 
investment policy does not contain requirements that would limit the exposure to credit risk for investments. The credit 
quality ratings of the Township’s investments are identified above. 
 
Concentration of credit risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of the Township’s 
investment in a single holding. State law and the Township’s investment policy places no limitations on the amount that can 
be invested in any one issuer. Investments in investment pools and money market funds are not subject to concentration of 
credit risk. Investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of the Township’s total investments are as follows: 
 

Fair
value Percentage

Government-sponsored enterprises:
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Fixed Rate Bonds 533,384       7.87%

Commercial paper:
General Electric Commercial Paper 496,081       7.32%

Issuer

 
 
Interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease as a result of an increase in 
market interest rates. Generally, longer investment maturities generate more sensitivity to changes in an investment’s fair 
value due to changes in market rates. The Township’s investment policy has no specific limitations with respect to 
maturities of investments. The maturities of the Township’s investments are identified above. Investments in investment 
pools and money market funds are not subject to interest rate risk. 
 
The Township’s investments include holdings in the Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System - Michigan (CLASS), which 
is a local government investment pool established under Michigan state statutes for participating Michigan municipalities. 
This pool, which is a nonrisk categorized qualifying investment, is carried at fair value. The fair value of the Township’s 
position in the pool is the same as the value of its pool shares. The fund operates like a money market fund with each share 
valued at $1, and is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s (credit risk); it is not subject to regulatory oversight; the pool issues 
a separate report, which is available at 15309 Meadowwood Drive, Grand Haven, Michigan, 49417. 
 
Fair value measurement - The Township categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value 
of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The Township has the following recurring fair value 
measurement as of December 31, 2018.   
 

• U.S. government and agency securities are valued using observable fair values of similar assets (Level 2). 
 
The MBIA CLASS Fund was measured at net asset value (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient, and, accordingly, has not 
been classified in the fair value hierarchy. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES 
 
Receivables as of December 31, 2018, for the Township’s individual major and nonmajor funds, in the aggregate, were as 
follows: 
 

Special Intergovern-
Taxes Accounts assessments mental Totals

Governmental:
General 2,498,875$ 38,450$       -$                   591,255$          3,128,580$ 
Sewer Improvement -                16,059         53,531               45,584               115,174       
Road bond 634,757       29,391         -                     -                     664,148       
Nonmajor 770,228       5,300            18,617               4,722                 798,867       

Total governmental 3,903,860$ 89,200$       72,148$            641,561$          4,706,769$ 

Amounts due beyond
one year -$              -$              57,328$            -$                   57,328$       

Fund

 
 
All receivables are considered to be fully collectible. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2018, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated - land 504,748$       -$                -$                504,748$       

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 2,848,371      165,083          -                   3,013,454      
Equipment 4,141,842      176,526          -                   4,318,368      
Vehicles 3,829,704      322,139          (106,539)        4,045,304      
Infrastructure 22,587,807    -                   (90,193)           22,497,614    

Subtotal 33,407,724    663,748          (196,732)        33,874,740    

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (1,811,112)     (77,502)           -                   (1,888,614)     
Equipment (2,454,489)     (256,197)        -                   (2,710,686)     
Vehicles (2,944,661)     (281,934)        106,539          (3,120,056)     
Infrastructure (8,429,489)     (268,502)        4,903              (8,693,088)     

Subtotal (15,639,751)   (884,135)        111,442          (16,412,444)   

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 17,767,973    (220,387)        (85,290)           17,462,296    

Governmental activities capital assets, net 18,272,721$  (220,387)$      (85,290)$        17,967,044$   
 
Depreciation expense was charged to the Township’s governmental functions, as follows: 
 

Governmental activities:
General government 69,963$       
Public safety 542,640       
Public works 268,501       
Culture and recreation 3,031            

Total governmental activities 884,135$      
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

-28- 



Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated - land 171,000$       -$                -$                171,000$       

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 94,759            -                   -                   94,759            
Improvements other than buildings 241,045          -                   -                   241,045          
Vehicles and equipment 171,091          -                   -                   171,091          

Subtotal 506,895          -                   -                   506,895          

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (94,759)           -                   -                   (94,759)           
Improvements other than buildings (151,691)        (2,469)             -                   (154,160)        
Vehicles and equipment (140,628)        (8,453)             -                   (149,081)        

Subtotal (387,078)        (10,922)           -                   (398,000)        

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 119,817          (10,922)           -                   108,895          

Business-type activities capital assets, net 290,817$       (10,922)$        -$                279,895$        
 
NOTE 6 - PAYABLES 
 
Payables as of December 31, 2018, for the Township’s individual major and nonmajor funds, in the aggregate, were as 
follows: 
 

Accrued
Accounts Payroll Totals

Governmental:
General 242,322$     177,550$     419,872$     
Sewer Improvement 45,610         -                45,610         
Nonmajor 208,529       -                208,529       

Total governmental 496,461$     177,550$     674,011$     

Fund
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2018, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Due within
balance Increases Reductions balance one year

Governmental activities:
$9,750,000 2015 General Obligation Unlimited Tax
Bonds, payable in annual installments of $850,000
to $1,350,000, including interest at 1.5% - 3.0%;
final payment due April  2026 9,750,000$    -$                (850,000)$      8,900,000$    900,000$       

$187,580  2015 Installment purchase agreement
note, payable in annual installments of $66,060,
with 2.8% interest; final payment due 
September 2018 64,262            -                   (64,262)           -                   -                   

Subtotal 9,814,262      -                   (914,262)        8,900,000      900,000          

Premium on 2015  bonds 53,006            -                   (10,368)           42,638            -                   

Total long term debt 9,867,268      -                   (924,630)        8,942,638      900,000          

Compensated absences 432,477          366,820          (382,530)        416,767          -                   

Total governmental activities 10,299,745$  366,820$       (1,307,160)$   9,359,405$    900,000$        
 
At December 31, 2018 debt service requirements, with the exception of compensated absences, are as follows: 
 

Year ended
December 31: Principal Interest

2019 900,000$      198,750$      
2020 950,000         182,500         
2021 1,000,000     163,000         
2022 1,100,000     142,000         
2023 1,100,000     118,625         

2024 - 2026 3,850,000     169,875         

Totals 8,900,000$   974,750$      

Governmental activities

 
 

All debt is secured by the full faith and credit of the Township. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 8 - PROPERTY TAXES 
 
The 2017 taxable valuation of the Township approximated $421,000,000, on which ad valorem taxes levied consisted of 
8.9412 mills for operating purposes and 2.5200 mills for roads, raising approximately $3,777,000 and $1,062,000, respectively. 
This amount is recognized in the respective fund financial statements as property tax revenue. 
 
The 2018 taxable valuation of the Township approximated $434,000,000, on which ad valorem taxes levied consisted of 
8.9691 mills for operating purposes and 2.6500 mills for roads, raising approximately $3,881,000 and $1,149,000, respectively. 
This amount is recognized in the respective fund financial statements as deferred inflows of resources, based upon the period 
for which the proceeds are budgeted and will be made available for the financing of operations. 
 
NOTE 9 - TAX ABATEMENTS 
 
The Township enters into property tax abatement agreements with local businesses for the purpose of attracting or 
retaining businesses within the Township. Each agreement was negotiated under a state law, which allows local units to 
abate property taxes for a variety of economic development purposes. The abatements may be granted to local businesses 
located within the Township or promising to relocate within the Township. Depending on the statute referenced for a 
particular abatement, the Township may grant abatements of up to 50% of annual property taxes through a direct 
reduction of the entity's property tax bill or not tax the entity on improvements to a property for a period of time, not to 
exceed twelve years. Depending on the terms of the agreement and state law, abated taxes may be subject to recapture 
upon default of the entity. The Township has not made any commitments as part of the agreements other than to reduce 
taxes. The Township is not subject to any tax abatement agreements entered into by other governmental entities. 
 
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the Township abated property taxes totaling $25,202 under the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption. Which is authorized by Public Act 198 of 1974. 
 
NOTE 10 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 
The General Fund transferred $658,350 to a nonmajor capital projects fund (Building and Grounds Fund) to assign funds for 
future capital acquisitions, and $13,000 to a nonmajor special revenue fund (Police Training Fund) to support current public 
safety expenditures. 
 
A nonmajor capital projects fund (Road Improvement Fund) transferred $13,014 to the Road Bond Fund to cover a portion 
of current year interest expenditures. 
 
NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, property and casualty, workers’ compensation, 
and employee health and medical claims. The risks of loss arising from general liability up to $5,000,000, building contents, 
workers’ compensation, employee medical, and casualty are managed through purchased commercial insurance. For all 
risks of loss, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage provided in prior years. Also, in 
the past three years, settlements did not exceed insurance coverage. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 12 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
The Township and its employees contribute to the Kalamazoo Township Pension Plan, a defined contribution pension, 
individual account plan, which is administered by a third-party administrator. The plan covers four classes of employees, as 
allowed under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The first class of employees includes all elected officials. The second 
class of employees includes paid on-call firefighters. The third class includes all full-time employees, except elected officials 
and police hired after January 1, 2013. The fourth class includes all full-time employees, except elected officials and police 
hired before January 1, 2013. 
 
Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the Plan are established, and may be amended, by the Township 
Board. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings. 
Employees are eligible to participate as described above. The Township contributes 10% of compensation to the first class 
of qualifying employees. The Township contributes 6.20% of compensation to the second class of qualifying employees, 
with an equal percentage contributed by all covered employees in the second class. The Township contributes 10% of 
compensation to the third class. The Township contributes 12% of compensation to the fourth class. Employees are 
permitted to make contributions to the Plan, up to applicable Internal Revenue Code limits. For the year ended December 
31, 2018, the Township and eligible employees made contributions of $168,301 and $37,101, respectively. At December 31, 
2018, the Township reported no accrued liability as part of the contributions to the plan. 
 
The Township’s contributions for each employee (and investment earnings allocated to the employee’s account) are fully 
vested on the day the employee is eligible to participate in the plan, which occurs after 48 months of service. 
 
The Township is not a trustee of the defined contribution pension plan, nor is the Township responsible for investment 
management of the pension plan assets. Accordingly, plan assets, and changes therein, are not reported in these financial 
statements. 
 
NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan description: 
The Township participates in the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an agent, multiple-
employer, statewide public employee pension plan established by the Michigan Legislature under Public Act 135 of 1945 and 
administered by a nine-member Retirement Board. MERS issues a publicly-available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by accessing the MERS website at 
www.mersofmich.com. 
 
Benefits provided: 
The Township’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries and covers the full-time employees of the Township. Retirement benefits for eligible employees are calculated 
as 2.5% of the employee’s three-year final average compensation times the employee’s years of service with a maximum 
of 80% of final average compensation. Normal retirement age is 60, with early retirement at a reduced benefit at age 50, with 
25 years of service, or age 55, with 15 years of service. Deferred retirement benefits vest after 6 years of credited service but 
are not paid until the date retirement would have occurred had the member remained an employee. Covered employees are 
required to contribute 2.06% of wages to the plan. An employee who leaves service may withdraw their contributions, plus 
any accumulated interest. Benefit terms, within the parameters of MERS, are established and amended by the authority of the 
Township Board. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 
Employees covered by benefit terms: 
At the December 31, 2017, measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 12       
Active employees 36       

Total 48        
Contributions: 
The Township is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as established by the 
MERS Retirement Board. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Covered 
employees are required to contribute 2.06% of wages to the plan. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the Township 
contributed $389,279 to the plan. 
 
Net pension liability: 
The Township’s net pension liability reported at December 31, 2018, was determined using a measurement of the total 
pension liability and the pension net position as of December 31, 2017. The total pension liability was determined by an annual 
actuarial valuation as of that date. 
 
Actuarial assumptions: 
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.75% In the long term 
Investment rate of return 7.75% net of investment expense, including inflation  

 
Mortality rates were based on a blend of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables, with rates multiplied by 105 
percent; RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables; and RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables all with a 50 percent male and 50 percent 
female blend. For disabled retirees, the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table with a 50 percent male and 50 percent 
female blend is used to reflect the higher expected mortality rates of disabled members. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017, valuation were based on the results of the 2015 Experience 
Study, which is the most recent actuarial experience study. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in which the best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment and administrative expenses, and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
in the following schedule: 
 

Target  Long-term expected
Asset class allocation real rate of return

Global equity 55.50% 8.65%
Global fixed income 18.50% 3.76%
Real assets 13.50% 9.72%
Diversifying strategies 12.50% 7.50%  
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Discount rate: 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 8.00% for 2017. The projection of cash flows used to determine 
the discount rate assumes that employer contributions will be made at the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based 
on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future 
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Changes in the net pension liability: 
 

Total pension Plan fiduciary Net pension
liability net position liability (asset)

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at December 31, 2017 13,160,346$          9,959,297$            3,201,049$            

Changes for the year:
Service cost 270,325                  -                           270,325                  
Interest 1,044,156              -                           1,044,156              
Benefit change (14,947)                   -                           (14,947)                   
Difference between expected and actual (13,823)                   -                           (13,823)                   
Employer contributions -                           411,289                  (411,289)                
Net investment income -                           1,322,517              (1,322,517)             
Benefit payments, including refunds (487,117)                (487,117)                -                           
Administrative expenses -                           (20,919)                   20,919                    

Net changes 798,594                  1,225,770              (427,176)                

Balances at December 31, 2018 13,958,940$          11,185,067$          2,773,873$            

Increase (decrease)

 
 
 
 
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: 
The following schedule presents the net pension liability of the Township, calculated using the discount rate of 8.00%, as well 
as what the Township’s net pension liability would be using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7.00%) 
or 1 percentage point higher (9.00%) than the current rate. 
 

1% decrease Current rate 1% increase
(7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)

Net pension l iabil ity 4,578,531$       2,773,873$       1,265,055$        
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position: 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued MERS financial report, 
which can be found at www.mersofmich.com. The plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used 
by the plan. The plan uses the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Investments 
are stated at fair value. Contribution revenue is recorded as contributions are due. Benefit payments are recognized as 
expense when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. 
 
Pension expense and deferred outflows of resources related to pensions: 
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the Township recognized pension expense of $609,577. At December 31, 2018, 
the Township reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, related to pensions, from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
outflows of inflows of

resources resources

Difference between projected and actual earnings -$                   234,932$          
Difference between expected and actual experience 49,492               171,956            
Difference in assumptions 331,833            -                     

381,325            406,888            

389,279            -                     

770,604$          406,888$          

Source

Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date

Totals  
 
The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability in 2019. 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, related to pensions, will be recognized 
in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Deferred outflows Deferred inflows
ended of resources of resources

2019 76,265$                       (5,734)$                        
2020 76,265                         22,717                         
2021 76,265                         197,137                       
2022 76,265                         134,300                       
2023 76,265                         28,372                         

2023 - 2024 -                                30,096                         

381,325$                     406,888$                      
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
Plan description:  
The Charter Township of Kalamazoo Retiree Health Care Plan is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan 
administered by the Township, which provides medical insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. 
 
Benefits provided:  
Summary of Benefits - Medical, dental and prescription coverage for the following period: 
 

Township officers and employees:  
Retiree - Three months (3.0) of health insurance coverage for each complete year of full-time Township 
service (either as an employee or elected official) up to a maximum of sixty (60) months of coverage  
Dependent - Three months (3.0) of health insurance coverage for each complete year of full-time 
Township service (completed by either an employee or elected official) up to a maximum of sixty (60) 
months of coverage  

Police officers:  
Retiree - Four and one-quarter (4.25) months for each complete year of continuous Township service  
Dependent - Three (3) months for each complete year of continuous Township service  

 
Retiree contribution - Twenty percent (20%) of retiree health care premium 
 
Summary of Plan Participants: 
As of December 31, 2018, Plan membership consisted of the following: 
 

 

Inactive participants receiving benefits 14       
Active participants 48       

Total participants 62        
 
Contributions: 
The Plan was established and is being funded under the authority of the Township’s governing body and under agreements 
with the unions representing various classes of employees. The Plan's funding policy is to pay expected plan benefits from 
general operating funds – pay-as-you-go. Active participants do not make contributions to pre-fund the Plan. There are no 
long-term contracts for contributions to the plan. The plan has no legally required reserves. 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 
For purposes of measuring the net Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the Township. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
The Total OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018 and the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:  
 

Inflation    Implicit in expected payroll increases  
Payroll increases    1.0% (for purposes of allocating liability)  
Investment rate of return   N/A; this plan is not pre-funded  
20-year Aa Municipal bond rate  3.0%  
Mortality  RP 2014 Headcount weighted, annuitant and non-annuitant, sex-distinct     

mortality table with MP-2018 improvement scale  
 

As this plan is not pre-funded, no long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was determined. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate: 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.0%. Because the plan does not have a dedicated OPEB 
trust, there are not assets projected to be sufficient to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
For projected benefits that are covered by projected assets, the long-term expected rate was used to discount the 
projected benefits. From the year that benefit payments were not projected to be covered by the projected assets (the 
“depletion date”), projected benefits were discounted at a discount rate reflecting a 20-year AA/Aa tax-exempt municipal 
bond yield. A single equivalent discount rate that yields the same present value of benefits is calculated. This discount rate 
is used to determine the total OPEB liability. December 31, 2018 is the first year of required compliance with GASB 75, so 
there is no required discount rate change to disclose. 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB liability: 
 

 

Total OPEB Plan fiduciary Net OPEB
liability net position liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at December 31, 2017 3,044,820$               -$                           3,044,820$               

Changes for the year:
Service cost 135,506                    -                             135,506                    
Interest 93,757                       -                             93,757                       
Experience (gaines)/ losses (46,967)                     -                             (46,967)                     
Contributions -                             110,177                    (110,177)                   
Benefit payments (110,177)                   (110,177)                   -                             

Net changes 72,119                       -                             72,119                       

Balances at December 31, 2018 3,116,939$               -$                           3,116,939$               

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB liabil ity 0.00%

Increase (decrease)
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Net OPEB Liability - Discount and trend rate sensitivities: 
The following schedule presents the net OPEB liability of the Township, calculated using trend and discount rates 1% higher 
and lower than base assumptions: 
 

 

Trend 1% decrease Current rate 1% increase

Total OPEB liabil ity 2,737,056$       3,116,939$       3,574,614$       
Plan fiduciary net position -                     -                     -                     

Net OPEB liabil ity 2,737,056$       3,116,939$       3,574,614$       

Discount 1% decrease Current rate 1% increase

Total OPEB liabil ity 3,460,456$       3,116,939$       2,841,768$       
Plan fiduciary net position -                     -                     -                     

Net OPEB liabil ity 3,460,456$       3,116,939$       2,841,768$        
 
Components of OPEB expense for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018: 
 

 

Service cost 135,506$                  
Interest on total OPEB liabil ity 93,757                      
Experience (gains) / losses (4,529)                       

OPEB expense 224,734$                   
 
Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to OPEB Plan: 
 

 

Deferred Deferred
outflows of inflows of

resources resources

Experience (gains) / losses -$            42,438$       

-$            42,438$       

Source

Total  
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

 

Year Deferred outflows Deferred inflows
ended of resources of resources

2019 -$                              4,529$                         
2020 -                                4,529                            
2021 -                                4,529                            
2022 -                                4,529                            
2023 -                                4,529                            

Thereafter -                                19,793                         

-$                              42,438$                        
 
Reconciliation of Net OPEB liability: 
 

 

Net OPEB liabil ity at December 31, 2017 3,044,820$              
Total OPEB expense 224,734                    
Contributions (110,177)                   
Deferred outflow of resources -                             
Deferred inflows of resources (42,438)                     

Net OPEB liabil ity at December 31, 2018 3,116,939$               
 
OPEB Plan fiduciary net position: 
 
The OPEB Plan fiduciary net position as of December 31, 2018 was $-0-; this Plan is not pre-funded. 
 
Net OPEB liability, by participant status, at December 31, 2018: 
 

 

Inactive participants receiving benefits 506,111$       
Active participants 2,610,828      

Total 3,116,939$     
 
NOTE 15 - JOINT VENTURE 
 
The Township is a member of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (the Authority), which is a joint venture of the Charter 
Townships of Comstock and Kalamazoo. The administrative board of the Authority consists of members appointed by each 
participating unit and a member at-large. The Authority was established to administer and enforce the Michigan State 
Construction Code within its constituent municipalities. Complete audited financial statements for the Authority can be 
obtained by contacting the Authority at 2322 Nazareth Road, Kalamazoo, MI 49048. 
 
The Township does not expect to receive residual equity from the joint venture. The Township is unaware of any indication 
that the joint venture is accumulating significant financial resources or is experiencing fiscal stress that may cause an additional 
financial benefit or burden on the Township in the near future. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 16 - CONTINGENT LIABILITY 
 
The Township is contingently liable to its employees for $506,189 in accumulated, nonvested sick pay benefits at 
December 31, 2018. 
 
NOTE 17 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCE 

The Recycling Fund, a special revenue fund, had a deficit fund balance at December 31, 2018, in the amount of $16,323. The 
deficit will be eliminated through the recognition of assessment revenues in the subsequent year. 
 
NOTE 18 - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
During the current year, the Charter Township of Kalamazoo adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. As a result, the government-wide 
financial statements now include a liability for unfunded other postemployment benefits, known as the net OPEB liability. 
Some of the changes in the net OPEB liability are recognized immediately, as part of OPEB expense, and other changes will be 
deferred and recognized over future years. See Note 14 for more details. 
 
The cumulative effect of this new accounting standard was an increase of $459,886 in opening net position of governmental 
activities at January 1, 2018, to record the net OPEB liability and related deferred outflows of resources. The adoption of GASB 
Statement No. 75 did not affect the beginning of year equity of any governmental fund. 
 
NOTE 19 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, was issued by the GASB in January 
2017 and will be effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The objective of this Statement is to improve 
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those 
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities for all state and local 
governments. The focus on the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. An activity meeting the criteria should be reported 
in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. Governments with activities meeting the criteria should present a 
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases, was issued by the GASB in June 2017 and will be 
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The objective of this Statement is to increase the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were 
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions 
of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings 
of the right to use the underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, 
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. 
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -  General Fund
Year ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

REVENUES
Taxes  4,051,365$  4,051,365$  4,019,102$     (32,263)$            
Federal grants 31,500          31,500          334                  (31,166)               
State grants 2,057,000     2,057,000     2,421,967       364,967              
Fines and forfeitures 27,000          27,000          26,728            (272)                    
Licenses and permits 276,700        276,700        308,143          31,443                
Charges for services 381,844        381,844        475,851          94,007                
Investment income 69,140          69,140          98,766            29,626                
Other 559,515        559,515        682,877          123,362              

Total revenues 7,454,064     7,454,064     8,033,768       579,704              

EXPENDITURES
General government:

Legislative 82,580          82,580          43,721            38,859                
Supervisor 226,805        226,805        232,161          (5,356)                 
Finance director 231,225        231,225        223,172          8,053                  
Elections 60,425          60,425          53,131            7,294                  
Assessor 204,935        204,935        176,397          28,538                
Clerk 86,875          86,875          98,254            (11,379)               
Treasurer 36,490          36,490          39,768            (3,278)                 
General services administration 358,300        358,300        327,224          31,076                
Building and grounds 265,720        265,720        258,384          7,336                  
Cemetery 26,335          26,335          29,562            (3,227)                 

Total general government 1,579,690     1,579,690     1,481,774       97,916                

Public safety:
Police protection 4,405,245     4,405,245     4,303,085       102,160              
Fire protection 1,642,260     1,642,260     1,548,428       93,832                
Emergency preparedness 28,000          37,500          39,134            (1,634)                 

Total public safety 6,075,505     6,085,005     5,890,647       194,358              

Public works:
Streets 250,000        250,000        14,612            235,388              
Sidewalks 50,000          50,000          2,890               47,110                

Total public works 300,000        300,000        17,502            282,498              
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -  General Fund (Continued)
Year ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Community and economic development -

planning and zoning 87,500$        87,500$        81,643$          5,857$                

Recreation and culture - parks 11,150          11,150          5,928               5,222                  

Capital outlay 199,700        199,700        47,157            152,543              

Total expenditures 8,253,545     8,263,045     7,524,651       738,394              

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (799,481)       (808,981)       509,117          1,318,098          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers to other funds 5,122,896     (658,350)       (671,350)         (13,000)               

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 4,323,415     (1,467,331)   (162,233)         1,305,098          

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 4,390,739     4,390,739     4,390,739       -                      

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 8,714,154$  2,923,408$  4,228,506$     1,305,098$        
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOWNSHIP'S NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Year ended December 31, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015

Total pension liability:
Service cost 270,325$        258,547$      249,075$      246,772$      
Interest 1,044,156       998,036         916,469         855,303         
Benefit change (14,947)           (17,082)         (9,555)            -                 
Difference between expected and actual experience (13,823)           (213,149)       79,189           -                 
Changes in assumptions -                   -                 530,931         -                 
Benefit payments, including refunds (487,117)         (424,372)       (383,830)       (339,834)       

Net change in total pension liability 798,594          601,980         1,382,279     762,241         

Total pension liability, beginning of year 13,160,346     12,558,366   11,176,087   10,413,846   

Total pension liability, end of year 13,958,940$  13,160,346$ 12,558,366$ 11,176,087$ 

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer 411,289$        379,573$      370,953$      360,234$      
Net investment income (loss) 1,322,517       1,031,054     (140,110)       547,289         
Benefit payments, including refunds (487,117)         (424,372)       (383,830)       (339,834)       
Administrative expenses (20,919)           (20,338)         (20,232)         (20,166)         

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,225,770       965,917         (173,219)       547,523         

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning of year 9,959,297       8,993,380     9,166,599     8,619,076     

Plan fiduciary net position, end of year 11,185,067$  9,959,297$   8,993,380$   9,166,599$   

Township's net pension liability, end of year 2,773,873$     3,201,049$   3,564,986$   2,009,488$   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percent of total pension liability 80.13% 75.68% 71.61% 82.02%

Covered payroll 2,273,545$     2,223,101$   2,276,321$   2,225,472$   

Township's net pension liability as a percentage 
of covered payroll 122.01% 143.99% 156.61% 90.29%

Note: This schedule is being built prospectively after the implementation of GASB 68 in 2015.
Ultimately, ten years of data will be presented.
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
SCHEDULE OF TOWNSHIP PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Nine Fiscal Years

Note - 2010 was the first year of the plan 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Actuarially determined contributions 457,290$        411,289$        379,573$        370,953$        360,234$        322,156$        301,309$          307,036$      197,754$      

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
    determined contributions 457,290          411,289          379,573          370,953          360,234          322,156          301,309             307,036        197,754        

Contribution deficiency -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$               -$               

Covered payroll 2,273,545$    2,350,224$    2,276,321$    2,225,472$    2,223,172$    2,127,448$    2,008,353$       2,053,447$  2,072,158$  

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 20.11% 17.50% 16.67% 16.67% 16.20% 15.14% 15.00% 14.95% 9.54%

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:

Valuation date Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 each year, which
is 24 months prior to the beginning of the fiscal year in which the contributions are required.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial costs method Entry-age normal cost

Amortization method Level percentage of pay, open

Remaining amortization period 22 years

Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases 3.75%

Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of investment and administrative expenses, including inflation

Retirement age Normal retirement age is 60 years

Mortality 50% Female/50% Male blend of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables with rates multiplied by 105%
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOWNSHIP'S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018

Total OPEB liability:
Service cost 135,506$        
Interest 93,757            
Difference between expected and actual experience (46,967)           
Benefit payments, including refunds (110,177)         

Net change in total OPEB liability 72,119            

Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 3,044,820       

Total OPEB liability, end of year 3,116,939$     

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions/benefit payments made from general operating funds 110,177$        
Benefit payments, including refunds (110,177)         

Net change in plan fiduciary net position -                   

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning of year -                   

Plan fiduciary net position, end of year -$                 

Township's net OPEB liability, end of year 3,116,939$     

Plan fiduciary net position as a percent of total OPEB liability 0.00%

Covered payroll 3,383,428$     

Township's net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 92.12%

Note: This schedule is being built prospectively after the implementation of GASB 75 in 2018.
Ultimately, ten years of data will be presented.
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
SCHEDULE OF TOWNSHIP OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
Current Fiscal Year

2018
Actuarially determined employer contributions:
  Service cost (with interest) 139,571$          
  Amortization of unfunded liability 238,980            

  Total 378,551            

Employer contribution 110,177            

Contribution deficiency / (excess) 268,374$          

Covered payroll 3,383,428$       

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 11.19%

Assumptions used in calculation of actuarially determined contribution:

Valuation date December 31, 2018

Actuarial methods:

Cost method Entry age normal (level percent)
Asset valuation method Equal to market value of assets

Actuarial assumptions:

Discount Rate 3.00%
Rationale – 20-year Aa Municipal bond rate and complies with State of Michigan Public Act 202

Payroll inflation 1.00%
Rationale – Per employer input

Return on plan assets N/A
Rationale – Plan is not pre-funded

Mortality rates RP 2014 Headcount weighted, annuitant and sex-distinct mortality table with MP 2018 improvement scale
Rationale – Contemporary tables

Utilization

Rationale – Based on current retiree election and not inconsistent with active coverage

Turnover rates Crocker-Sarason-Straight T-3
Rationale – Low turnover table common to municipal employers

Age Sample rates
20 0.0658
25 0.0527
30 0.0483
35 0.0447
40 0.0384
45 0.0321
50 0.0152

Retirement rates
53-55 0.06
56-57 0.00
58-59 0.20

60 0.60
61 0.00
62 0.33

63-65 0.00
66 1.00

Rationale – Experience based taking into account eligibility under the plan

Marital assumption
Rationale – Consistent with employer experience

Annual per-capita costs valued
Rationale – Age-weighted per national morbidity studies

Low cost plan Low cost plan high cost high cost 
Age male female plan male plan female

50 5,050.28           6,312.85         7,814.01         9,767.51         
55 6,717.88           7,322.91         10,548.91       11,330.32       
60 8,585.48           8,332.96         13,283.82       12,893.12       

Medicare eligible 5,901.24           5,901.24         5,901.24         5,901.24         
Health plan premiums (basis for retiree contributions)

Single 2 person Single 2 person
Pre- 65 413.71              992.90            640.11            1,536.27         

Medicare eligible 491.77              983.54            491.77            491.77            
Dental 39.19                 78.38              39.19              78.38              

Healthcare inflation Pre-65 – 8.5% in 2019 graded down 0.25% per year to 4.5%
Medicare eligible – 7.0% in 2019 graded down 0.25% per year to 4.5%
Dental – 3.0%

Rationale – Consistent with national expectation studies and Uniform Assumptions under as required by State of Michigan Public Act 202

Data Collection

Date and form of data

Changes since prior valuation
Mortality table set as published by Society of Actuaries with dynamic future improvements
Discount rate set at 3.0% based on 20-year Aa Municipal bond rates and Uniform Assumptions under PA 202
Amortization period set to average future service consistent with updated GASB standards
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Low cost plan High cost plan

45% of active, eligible employees will elect the lower cost plan with dental, 45% the higher cost plan with dental and 10% dental only; Actual coverage used for non-active

67% of active employees will have covered spouse at retirement with females 3 years younger than males; Actual spouse data used for retirees

All personnel and asset data was prepared by the Plan sponsor or a representative and was generally relied upon as being correct and complete without audit by Watkins Ross
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - nonmajor governmental funds
December 31, 2018

Police Drug Street 911 Police Fire Road Building and 911 Wireless
Training Enforcement Lighting Recycling Parks Wireless Capital Capital Improvement Street Water Grounds Capital Totals

ASSETS
Cash 17,234$        94,544$             321,761$      277,771$      9,702$         122,519$      682,441$      1,500,346$     190,159$      194,246$      264,166$      558,000$           1,844$                4,234,733$     
Receivables -                 -                      140,111        217,004        -               4,722             160,168        258,244          -                 4,368             14,250           -                      -                      798,867           

Total assets 17,234$        94,544$             461,872$      494,775$      9,702$         127,241$      842,609$      1,758,590$     190,159$      198,614$      278,416$      558,000$           1,844$                5,033,600$     

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Payables 2,892$           -$                    20,399$        41,271$        -$             -$               35,683$        -$                 89,948$        -$               -$               18,336$             -$                    208,529$         
Unearned operating assessment revenue -                 -                      247,495        -                 -               -                 -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                      -                      247,495           

Total liabilities 2,892             -                      267,894        41,271           -               -                 35,683           -                   89,948           -                 -                 18,336               -                      456,024           

Deferred inflows of resources:
Assessments levied for the subsequent year -                 -                      -                 469,827        -               -                 274,051        456,812          -                 -                 -                 -                      -                      1,200,690       
Unavailable special assessment revenue -                 -                      -                 -                 -               -                 -                 -                   -                 3,990             14,022           -                      -                      18,012             

Total deferred inflows of resources -                 -                      -                 469,827        -               -                 274,051        456,812          -                 3,990             14,022           -                      -                      1,218,702       

Fund balances:
Restricted for:

Public safety 14,342           94,544                -                 -                 -               127,241        -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                      -                      236,127           
Public works -                 -                      193,978        (16,323)         -               -                 -                 -                   100,211        -                 -                 -                      -                      277,866           
Capital outlay -                 -                      -                 -                 -               -                 532,875        1,301,778       -                 -                 -                 -                      1,844                  1,836,497       

Committed for recreation and culture -                 -                      -                 -                 9,702           -                 -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                      -                      9,702               
Assigned for:

Capital outlay -                 -                      -                 -                 -               -                 -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 539,664             -                      539,664           
Public works -                 -                      -                 -                 -               -                 -                 -                   -                 194,624        264,394        -                      -                      459,018           

Total fund balances (deficit) 14,342           94,544                193,978        (16,323)         9,702           127,241        532,875        1,301,778       100,211        194,624        264,394        539,664             1,844                  3,358,874       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances 17,234$        94,544$             461,872$      494,775$      9,702$         127,241$      842,609$      1,758,590$     190,159$      198,614$      278,416$      558,000$           1,844$                5,033,600$     
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Charter Township of Kalamazoo
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - nonmajor governmental funds
Year ended December 31, 2018

Police Drug Street 911 Police Fire Road Building and 911 Wireless
Training Enforcement Lighting Recycling Parks Wireless Capital Capital Improvement Street Water Grounds Capital Totals

REVENUES
Federal grants -$              -$                   -$              -$              -$              -$              5,000$          -$                 -$                 -$              -$              -$                   -$                   5,000$            
State grants -                -                     -                -                -                -                -                -                   -                   11,728          -                -                     -                     11,728            
Intergovernmental -                -                     -                -                -                -                -                -                   -                   -                5,400            -                     -                     5,400               
Fines and forfeitures 8,386            -                     -                -                -                -                -                -                   -                   -                -                -                     -                     8,386               
Interest and rentals -                1,338                 4,364            2,695            -                2,275            9,525            38,455             1,039               2,834            5,016            3,292                 -                     70,833            
Other 5,639            7,109                 239,649        444,540        -                45,631          266,732        444,126           -                   2,537            5,508            -                     -                     1,461,471       

Total revenues 14,025          8,447                 244,013        447,235        -                47,906          281,257        482,581           1,039               17,099          15,924          3,292                 -                     1,562,818       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety 19,110          397                    -                -                -                182,389        -                -                   -                   -                -                -                     13,156               215,052          
Public works -                -                     247,235        478,355        -                -                -                -                   416,102           -                19,869          -                     -                     1,161,561       

Capital outlay -                -                     -                -                -                -                261,113        249,905           -                   -                -                121,978            -                     632,996          
Debt service:

Principal -                -                     -                -                -                -                -                64,262             -                   -                -                -                     -                     64,262            
Interest -                -                     -                -                -                -                -                1,800               -                   -                -                -                     -                     1,800               

Total expenditures 19,110          397                    247,235        478,355        -                182,389        261,113        315,967           416,102           -                19,869          121,978            13,156               2,075,671       

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (5,085)           8,050                 (3,222)           (31,120)         -                (134,483)      20,144          166,614           (415,063)         17,099          (3,945)           (118,686)           (13,156)             (512,853)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 13,000          -                     -                -                -                -                -                -                   -                   -                -                658,350            10,000               681,350          
Transfers out -                -                     -                -                -                (10,000)         -                -                   (13,014)            -                -                -                     -                     (23,014)           

Net other financing 
sources (uses) 13,000          -                     -                -                -                (10,000)         -                -                   (13,014)            -                -                658,350            10,000               658,336          

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 7,915            8,050                 (3,222)           (31,120)         -                (144,483)      20,144          166,614           (428,077)         17,099          (3,945)           539,664            (3,156)                145,483          

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 6,427            86,494               197,200        14,797          9,702            271,724        512,731        1,135,164       528,288           177,525        268,339        -                     5,000                 3,213,391       

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 14,342$        94,544$            193,978$     (16,323)$      9,702$          127,241$     532,875$     1,301,778$     100,211$        194,624$     264,394$     539,664$          1,844$               3,358,874$     
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CHARITABLE
BENEFICIARIES

C O R P O R aT E  H E a D Q u a R T E R S

113-123 East Chicago Road

Sturgis, MI 49091

269-651-9345

Amigo Center
Animal Control
Bangor Apple Festival
Bangor Fireworks
Bangor Public Schools
Boys Baseball of Bronson
Branch County 4-H Livestock Auction
Bronson Athletics
Bronson Chamber of Commerce
Bronson Community Foundation
Bronson Kiwanis
Bronson Little League
Bronson Polish Festival
Bronson Rotary
Camp Fort Hill
Centreville Covered Bridge Days
City of Bangor
City of Sturgis
City of Three Rivers
Climax Scotts Community Schools
Colon Garden Club
Colon High School
Colon Kiwanis
Colon Summer Recreation
delta theta walk/run
Domestic Assault
Doyle Community Center
FFA
Glen Oaks Community College
Glen Oaks Community College Athletics

Glen Oaks Community College Foundation
Habitat for Humanity
Hospice
Junior Achievement
Junior Trojan Baseball
Kalamazoo County 4-H Livestock Auction
KeyStone Place
Klinger Lake Country Club Invitational
Lagrange County 4-H Livestock Auction
Mendon River Fest
Mendon Showboat
Nottawa Community Schools
Relay for Life 
Salvation Army
South Haven Blueberry Festival
South Haven Chamber
South Haven Festival of Cars
South Haven Harbor Fest
South Haven Health Foundation
South Haven Light Up Lake
South Haven Rotary
South Haven Winter Wonderland
St Joe County Pheasants Forever
St Joseph County United Way
St Joseph County 4-H Livestock Auction
St Joseph County Commission on Aging
St Joseph County EDGE
St Joseph County Grange Fair
St Joseph County Historical Land Resource     
  Building Restoration

P a R T I a L  L I S T  O f  2 0 1 8  C O M M u N I T Y  C O N T R I B u T I O N S

Sturgis Area Business Education Alliance 
Sturgis Chamber - Fireworks
Sturgis Chamber - Sturgis Fest
Sturgis Chamber Annual Dinner Sponsor 
Sturgis Council of the Arts
Sturgis Exchange Club
Sturgis High School Athletics
Sturgis Hospital
Sturgis Hospital Foundation
Sturgis Kiwanis
Sturgis Little League
Sturgis Neighborhood Program
Sturgis Public Schools
Sturgis Rotary
Sturgis Shrine Club
Sturgis Stingrays Swim Club
Three Rivers Chamber Events
Three Rivers Chamber Water Festival
Thurston Woods Village
Van Buren County Youth Fair
White Pigeon Days
White Pigeon Library
White Pigeon Rotary
Wild Turkey Federation
Youth for Christ
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HISTORY
Sturgis Bank & Trust

Company was founded

in 1905 by a group of

local businessmen.

Their mission was to

provide affordable

home financing.

That mission remains

true today!



On behalf of the Directors and employees of Sturgis Bancorp Inc. and Sturgis Bank and Trust  
Company, I am pleased to provide you a copy of our 2018 Annual Report to shareholders. In this An-
nual Report you will find many key performance measures. I encourage you to study the  
information provided in this Report and participate as a shareholder. If you would like clarification of 
the information contained in this Annual Report, or have suggestions, please contact me or our CFO, 
Brian Hoggatt at (269)651-9345.

This Report is condensed from those in the past. Full audited financial statements are still readily 
available for your review by visiting the Shareholder Relations information at Sturgisbank.com.  
You may also visit OTCQX.com and enter our ticker symbol --STBI. Even though our Bank is not 
subject to the same disclosure requirements as a SEC registered company, I believe in providing 
shareholders with a similar level of information.

In last year’s Annual Report, I was proud to inform you that 2017 was the best year since the financial
crisis. I am pleased to report 2018 was the highest earning year in my 32 year career. The cash 
dividend per share was also the highest in Bank history. Earnings were driven by the core business of 
the Bank, and not by any extraordinary events. Net interest income was up, while non-interest income 
was stable. Non-interest expense was down as a result of managing operational expenses. There was 
only a slight decline in the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses (ALLL) and solid growth in loans 
booked. The Bank’s REO dropped to zero during the fourth quarter of 2018 as well. This is attributable  
to sound underwriting standards and a strong economy. Bank assets increased to $432 million at the 
end of the year. This level of assets is also a year-end institution high. The reduction to the Federal 
Income Tax rate also positively impacted earnings.

The next year will be very exciting for our staff and communities. We have attracted several new
employees with deep roots in banking and in Southwest Michigan. We are implementing a new
Customer Relationship system that will allow us to better serve our existing customer base. The main
office will undergo a transformation in the next 12-months as well. It has been nearly 20 years since 
any major changes have been made to our main lobby. We have employed a well-respected  
architectural firm to design a customer interface that will allow our customers to have improved  
access to services and will provide more efficiency to our front facing staff. In addition to this, we  
have implemented new services on our Internet site and have several more features on the way.  
I plan to conduct a few “dog and pony shows” for our community members, to educate local investors  
to the merit of buying and holding our stock in their portfolios. I also wish to dispel the rumor that our 
stock is not available. I understand the liquidity can be a concern for larger holders of our stock, and 
wish to increase the liquidity for the benefit of all shareholders.

These products and our staff’s commitment to providing the highest level of customer service in 
Southwest Michigan are why our Bank is performing so well. We welcome your ownership and hope 
you may also make Sturgis Bank & Trust Company your one stop financial services provider.

Sincerely,

E R I C  L .  E I S H E N
President & CEO

T r a ns  f er   A g ent 
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
6201 15th Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11219
www.amstock.com

I N V E S T O R  I N F O R M AT I O N 
For additional copies of this report or other investor inquires contact:
Eric Eishen or Brian Hoggatt
269-651-9345
Visit the Shareholder Relations information at www.sturgisbank.com

SHAREHOLDER 
RELATIONS

DID YOU KNOW?

P AG  E  3

Stu rg is  Bancorp , I nc. Corpor ate &  
Common  Stock I n form aTIon
Sturgis Bancorp, Inc gross managed assets for 2018 were $950 million.  
This slight decrease was primarily at Oakleaf Financial Services. See chart  
below for a 5 year comparison of gross managed assets.
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TO MY FELLOW  
SHAREHOLDERS,

The Acorn and  

Oakleaf represents 

“Potential & Strength”. 

From a small acorn 

springs the mighty 

oak. An oak tree is 

strong and long lived. 

It’s wood has always 

been valued by man.

P AG  E  2

DID YOU KNOW?
Sturgis Bancorp, Inc.  

has been named to  

the 2019 OTCQX®  

Best 50, a ranking  

of top performing

companies traded  

on the OTCQX  

Best Market  

last year.
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Technology advances  

with internet banking,  

mobile app and mobile  

deposit bring banking  

to your fingertips.  

Stay connected with  

Sturgis Bank & Trust  

Company through the  

Bank’s facebook page.

DID YOU KNOW?
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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$4.4M

NET INCOME

Sturgis Bank & Trust

Company operates

through out Southwest

Michigan with 12

bank facilities in 9

communities, 3 full

service stand alone

ATM’s, and a loan

production office .

DID YOU KNOW?

BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
2 0 1 8
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2 0 1 5

2 0 1 6

2 0 1 7

EARNINGS PER SHARE

$0.91

$1.19

$1.28

$1.52

2 0 1 8

2 0 1 8 $2.08

$19.11

2 0 1 8

19.80
18.50

22.75

$342

2 0 1 8
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
 D ecember        3 1 ,  2 0 1 8  &  2 0 1 7
 (Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
 D ecember        3 1 ,  2 0 1 8  &  2 0 1 7
 (Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

A S S E T S

Cash and due from banks 

Other short-term investments 

     Total cas h & cas h equ ivale nts 

Interest-earning deposits in banks 

Securities - available for sale 

Securities - held to maturity

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 

Loans held for sale, at fair value 

Loans, net of allowance of $3,228 and $3,072

Premises and equipment, net 

Goodwill 

Core deposit intangibles 

Originated mortgage servicing rights 

Real estate owned 

Bank-owned life insurance 

Accrued interest receivable 

Other assets 

     Total ass ets 

LI A B I L I T I E S  &  S TO C K H O LD E R S ’  E Q U I T Y

Liabilities-Deposits:

Non Interest-bearing

Interest-bearing

     Total d e pos its

Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

     Total LIAB ILI TIES 

Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock - $1 par value: authorized - 1,000,000 shares
issued and outstanding – 0 shares 

Common stock – $1 par value: authorized – 9,000,000 shares
issued and outstanding 2,103,991 shares at December 31, 2018
and 2,094,991 shares at December 31, 2017
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

     Total stockhold e r s’ equ ity

Total liab i liti e s & stockhold e r s’ equ ity

2 0 1 7

14,219

10,293 

24,512

11,058 

25,313 

35,578

3,393

1,117

280,586

8,985

5,834

203 

1,160

453

10,261

1,536

4,443

414,432

2 0 1 8

12,267

13,133 

25,400

7,350

46,205

5,472

3,393

67

311,050

9,274

5,834

155

1,171

193

10,515

1,550

3,946

431,575

81,641

255,473 

337,114

34,447

239 

5,378

377,178 

-

2,095
7,514 

27,351 
294 

37,254

414,432

82,442

260,058

342,500 

44,109  

375 

4,391

391,375 

-

2,104
7,683

30,526
(113

40,200

431,575

2 0 1 7

12,953

804 
1,100

125
14,982

777
1,261
2,038

12,944
(213

13,157

1,356 
770 

1,545 
679 
446 
263 

(441
34 

258 
100 

5,010

8,736 
1,811 

379 
669 
401
152
296
191

2,251 
14,886

3,281

113

3,168 

1.52

0.48

I nterest        income    

Loans
Investment Securities:
   Taxable 
   Tax-exempt 

Dividends 
     Total i nte r e st i ncom e 

I nterest        E X P E N S E

Deposits 
Borrowed funds
     Total i nte r e st Expe n s e 
     N et i nte r e st i ncom e 
Provision for loan losses
     N et i nte r e st i ncom e  after provision for loan losses

N on  - interest         income    

Service charges and other fees
Interchange income
Investment brokerage commission income
Mortgage banking activities
Trust fee income
Earnings on cash value of bank-owned life insurance 
Loss on sale of securities
Gain on sale of real estate owned
Net gain on cash flow hedges
Other income
     Total non-i nte r e st i ncom e

N on  - interest         E X P E N S E S

Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Interchange expenses
Data processing
Professional services
Real estate owned expense
Advertising
FDIC premiums
Other expenses
     Total non-interest     expenses   

I n c o m e  b e f o r e  i n c o m e  ta x  e x p e n s e

Income Tax Expense

NE  T  INCOME    

Earnings per share

Dividends declared per share

2 0 1 8

14,960

988
1,095

194
17,237

1,726
937

2,663
14,574

161
14,413

1,360
812 

1,368 
663 
451
254

(159
224

-
111 

5,084

8,604
1,708

366
740 
399
111
342
249

1,986
14,505

4,992

619

4,373 

2.08

0.57

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$ 

$

$

)

))
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E X E C U T I V E  O FF  I C E R S
Eric L. Eishen
President & Chief Executive Officer

Steven L. Gage
President Van Buren County Market, CLO

Brian P. Hoggatt
Senior Vice President, CFO, Treasurer

Jason J. Hyska
Senior Vice President

Tracey L. Parker
Senior Vice President

Matthew D. Scheske
Senior Vice President

Ronald W. Scheske
Executive Vice President, COO

O FF  I C E R S
Jose D. Albarran
Vice President

Rob S. Beachy
Vice President

William D. Butcher
Vice President

Sandra J. Cagle
Vice President

Debora L. Capman
Senior Trust Officer

Emily D. Frohriep
Vice President

Joel T. Fowler
Assistant Vice President

Trudy R. Gloy
Vice President

Mary F. Hooley
Vice President

Kurt A. Inman
Vice President

Margaret M. Kunce
Vice President

Elizabeth M. Mayer
Vice President

Andrew T. McCall
Assistant Vice President

Steven E. Merchant
Assistant Vice President

Chris M. Moline
First Vice President

Heather J. Myers
Corporate Secretary

Pamela A. Norgan
Assistant Vice President

Tammy K. Smith
Assistant Vice President

Camille M. Wilson
Vice President
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OFFICERS
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BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS
D on  a ld   L .  Frost   
LTI Printing, Inc.
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

E ric    L .  E ishen   
Sturgis Bank & Trust Company
President & Chief Executive Officer

M ich   a el   R .  Frost   
LTI Printing, Inc.
President

J ohn    T .  W iedle     a
Automation Plus, Inc.
President
Sturgis Area Community Foundation
Co-Director

Kimberlee          B ontr    a g er
Locey CPA, LLC
Owner/President

D a vid    L .  Fr  a n k s
Oak Press Solutions, Inc.
President & Chief Executive Officer

J e f f rey    M .  M ohney   
A. W. Ayres Agency, Inc.
Owner

O a k le  a f  Fin   a nci   a l  S ervices       ,  I nc  .
Oakleaf Financial Services offers a complete range of investment and financial  
advisory services through Raymond James Financial Services, Inc.

O a k  I ns  u r a nce   ,  L L C
Oak Insurance, LLC offers consumer and commercial insurance products to  
Sturgis Bank & Trust Company customers.

O a k  T itle    ,  L L C
Oak Title, LLC is a partnership that provides title services to Sturgis Bank & Trust Company and  
others. This partnership streamlines the lending process and provides potential additional revenue.

T R U S T
The full service Trust Department offers estate settlement personal representative services,  
grantor/living trust and irrevocable trust administration, and comprehensive record keeping.
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF KALAMZOO 

KALAMAZOO COUNTY, MICHIGAN  

ORDINANCE NO. 610 

 

REPEAL AND AMEND ORDINANCES 

 

ADOPTED:   

EFFECTIVE:   

 
An Ordinance to repeal obsolete ordinances, and amend several ordinances.  
 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF KALAMAZOO, 
KALAMAZOO COUNTY, MICHIGAN, ORDAINS: 

 

SECTION 1 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 239 

 
Ordinance Number 239, Township Energy Code, is repealed. 

 

SECTION 2 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 253 

 
Ordinance Number 253, Fiscal Year, is repealed. 
 

SECTION 3 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 303 

 
Ordinance Number 303, Liquor License, is repealed. 

 
SECTION 4 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 416 

 
Ordinance Number 416, Cable Television Rate Regulation, is repealed. 
 

SECTION 5 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 470 

 
Ordinance Number 470, Cable System Regulations, is repealed. 
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SECTION 6 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 456 

 
Ordinance Number 456, Kimball Power Company Franchise, is repealed. 
 

SECTION 7 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 457 

 
Ordinance Number 457, Engage Energy US, L.P. Franchise, is repealed. 
 

SECTION 8 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 462 

 
Ordinance Number 462, First Power, LLP Franchise, is repealed. 
 

SECTION 9 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 485 

 
Ordinance Number 485, Quest Energy, LLP Franchise, is repealed. 
 

SECTION 10 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 488 

 
Ordinance Number 488, Sage St. -- No Parking, is repealed. 
 

SECTION 11 

AMEND ORDINANCE 604 

 
Ordinance Number 604, Sidewalks, is amended as follows: 
 
To the end of Section 3, Definitions, a new sub-part is appended:  
E. “Sidewalk” shall mean that portion of the street right-of-way (or abutting 
easement) with an improved paved surface designed for pedestrian and/or non-
motorized vehicle travel. 
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SECTION 12 

AMEND ORDINANCE 596 

 
Ordinance Number 596, Uniform Fire Code, is amended as follows: 
 
A. Section 14, VIOLATIONS, is renumbered to Section 16. 
B. Section 15, SAVINGS CLAUSE, is renumbered to Section 17. 
C. Section 16, EFFECTIVE DATE, SEVERABILITY AND REPEAL OF 

CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, is renumbered to Section 18. 
D. A new Section 14 is inserted as follows: 

Section 14 – FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS. 

A new section designated 13.1.13 is hereby added to the NFPA 1/UNIFORM 
FIRE CODE, 2018 EDITION to read, in its entirety, as follows:  
13.1.13 Signage on Fire Department Connections. Fire Department Connections 
(FC) shall be signed/marked so as to be easily identified at the time of an 
emergency. Signage shall be white on red reflective signage and letters shall be 
at least 6 inches in height and approved by the AHJ.  

E. A new Section 15 is inserted as follows: 
Section 15 – WATER SUPPLIES AND FIRE HYDRANTS. 

A new section designated 18.3.4.2 is hereby added to NPFA 1/Uniform Fire 
Code, 2018 Edition, to read, in its entirety, as follows:  
18.3.4.2 Fire Hydrant and Stand Pipe Signage. All fire hydrants shall be identified 
by signage as utilized by the local water provider or approved by the AHJ. Stand 
Pipes shall be identified as such by signage approved by the AHJ.  

 
SECTION 13 

REPEAL ORDINANCE 589 

 

Ordinance Number 589, Amend Traffic Code Ordinance, is repealed. 
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SECTION 14 

AMEND ORDINANCE 506 
 

Ordinance Number 506, Township Traffic Code, is amended by the addition of 
a new Section VI. A to read as follows:   
 
“VI. A.  Additional Township Traffic Regulations.  
 
a. Overtaking and Passing of Bicycles by Driver of a Motor Vehicle 
Except when overtaking and passing on the right is permitted, the following 
rules shall govern a driver of a motor vehicle overtaking a bicycle proceeding 
in the same direction:  
(1) If there is more than one lane for traffic proceeding in the same direction, 
move the vehicle to the lane to the immediate left, if the lane is available and 
moving into the lane is reasonably safe; 
(2) If there is only one lane for traffic proceeding in the same direction, pass to 
the left of the person operating a bicycle at a safe distance, which must be not 
less than five feet between any portion of the vehicle and the bicycle, and shall 
not move again to the right side of the highway until the vehicle is safely clear 
of the overtaken person operating a bicycle. 
(3) The driver of a motor vehicle may drive to the left of the center of a 
roadway, including when a no passing zone is marked, to pass a person 
operating a bicycle only if the roadway to the left of the center is unobstructed 
for a sufficient distance to permit the driver to pass the person operating the 
bicycle safely and avoid interference with oncoming traffic. This subsection 
does not authorize driving on the left side of the center of the roadway when 
otherwise prohibited by local ordinance or state law.” 
 

1. Section V “Penalties” of Ordinance No. 506 “Township Traffic Code”, as 

amended is hereby amended to read as follows:  
 

“The penalties provided by the Uniform Traffic Code and the provisions of the 

state laws herein above adopted by reference are hereby adopted as the 
penalties for violations of the corresponding provisions of this Ordinance.  The 
penalty for violation of Section V of this Traffic Code shall be the same as that 
for Improper Passing on the Left, Sections 257.638 and 257.636 of the 
Michigan Vehicle Code as adopted by reference herein”.  
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SECTION 15 

AMEND ORDINANCE 459 
 
Ordinance Number 459, Land Division, is amended by replacing existing 
section 7, subsection A, with the following: 
 
“A. All parcels created by a land division shall have the required frontage on a 
public street for the zoning district in which the property is located; the required 
minimum parcel size for the zoning district in which the property is located; and 
shall meet the following additional minimum width and area standards: 
(1) A minimum width of 80 feet at the required building setback line from a public 
road or municipally approved private road where the premises is zoned R-2 Single 
and Two Family Residential.  
(2) A minimum width of 90 feet at the required building setback line from a public 
road or municipally approved private road where the premises is zoned R-1 Single 
Family Residential.  
(3) A minimum width of 200 feet at the required building setback line from a public 
road or municipally approved private road or as approved by the Planning 
Commission where the premises is zoned for RM-1, RM-2, RM-3; 70 feet where the 
premises is zoned C-1; 100 feet where the premises is zoned C-2or I-1; and 150 feet 
where the premises is zoned I-2.  
(4) A minimum lot (parcel) area of 13,200 square feet where the premises is zoned 
R-2; a minimum of 20,000 square feet where the premises is zoned R-1; a minimum 
of 10,890 square feet where the premises is zoned C-1; a minimum of 15,000 
square feet where the premises is zoned C-2; a minimum of 21,780 square feet 
where the premises is zoned I-1; and a minimum of 43,560 square feet where the 
premises is zoned I-2. 
(5) Where municipal sanitary sewer and municipal water is not available the 
minimum lot area shall be 43,560 square feet and the minimum lot width shall be 
200 feet in all zoning districts.” 
(6) Any of the above dimensions may be reduced by action of the Zoning Board of 
Appeals in specific cases for cause. 
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SECTION 16 

AMEND ORDINANCE 523 
 
Ordinance Number 459, Subdivision/Site Condominium, is amended by 
replacing existing section 6, subsection C2, with the following: 
 
“2. Lots and building sites. 

a. Lots and building sites shall comply with the size requirements of the 
Kalamazoo Township Zoning Ordinance and as a minimum the following:  
Lots and building sites served by sewer and water and zoned R-2 Single and 
Two Family Residential must have a minimum width of 80' at the building setback 
line and a minimum of 13,200 square feet of area. Lots and building sites with 
sewer or water and zoned R-1 Single Family Residential must have a minimum 
width of 100’ at the building setback line and a minimum of 20,000 square feet of 
area. Lots and building sites without either sewer or water must have a minimum 
width of 200’ at the building setback line and a minimum of 43,560 square feet of 
area. Lots and building sites that are within a Multiple Use Development under 
the Township Zoning Ordinance shall not be subject to these lot/building site 
dimension requirements.  
b. Corner lots and building sites generally should have extra width to permit 
appropriate building setback from both streets.” 

 
SECTION 17 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This ordinance shall take effect  on the day after publication, after adoption.  

 
       CHARTER TOWNSHIP OFKALAMAZOO 
       Mark E. Miller, Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 

 



































 

 

 

To:  Kalamazoo Charter Township Board of Trustees 

From:   Dexter Mitchell, Township Manager 

Subject: Manager’s update 

Date:  August 12, 2019 

 

Township Millage Rates 

At the Township’s last board meeting in July our finance director Nancy walked us 
through our township millage rates. This process was necessary to make sure that we 
came in with the balance numbers below. Jim Yonker and myself have worked up the 
estimated revised special assessment collections for the township. Please pay special 
attention to solid waste along with the Road bond obligation. 

Here are the revised estimates of the Special Assessment collections: 

Kalamazoo Township Taxable Value for Real property only: $424,550,682 

Police operating: 1.4 mills= $594,371 

Police Capital: 0.6 mills= $254,730 

Fire Protection: 1.0 mills= $424,550 

Street Lights: 0.55 mills= $233,503 (this was at 0.54 and was under by $3,222 the 0.55 

would generate an additional $4,000)  

Kalamazoo Township Millage: 8.9412 mills 

Kalamazoo Township Taxable Value (Real & Personal) $448,505,682 

$448,505,682 x 8.9412= $4,010,179 

Solid Waste: 

7,176 Units x $70= $502,320 (this was at $65.60 and was under by $31,120. The $70.00 

would generate an additional $32,000) 

Road Bond Obligation: for 2020 is $1,132,500 2.65 mills (This is the same as last year 
this would raise $1,188,540 we recommend that you keep it the same) 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Burnham & Flowers 

I am pleased to announce that our health insurance rate for our retiree Medicare Plus 
Bues has dropped 5.53%, for year 2020. This drop in price is great news for the 
township. Healthcare coverage continues to be one of the highest expenses for the 
Township and companies throughout our nation. 

HVAC 

The heating and cooling system is moving along. We apologize for any discomfort 
during these last few weeks. The overall benefit is a much needed improvement. The 
project is more than 60% done with the project. 

Kalsec 

Meeting with Jim Justice of Kalsec, to discuss the United Nations (UN) 17 sustainable 
development goals which is part of Kalsec strategic plan for the future. This meeting 
was a great opportunity for Kalamazoo Township to express the ongoing pledge to be 
environmentally friendly and have an impact on the world beyond its borders. Please 
see the attached draft of the U.N. 17 sustainable goals. 

KFC 

We are continuing to work and meet with the new owners of the KFC on West Main for 
future economic development 

Solar Panel 

During the August planning commission meeting, the planning commission approved 
the plan of the Kalamazoo County Sheriff’s office to install solar panels at the 1421 
Healy street location. The next step will be for the Kalamazoo Charter Township Board 
to approve the plan. Solar energy is one of the most abundant and renewable energy 
sources in the world. This opportunity will allow the township’s climate action plan to 
align with actual goals and create a partnership between the county and the township. 

Small Wireless Discussion  

The Kalamazoo Supervisor and I attended the meeting which included Cooper 
Township, Comstock Township, Oshtemo Township and several other communities with 
regards to Michigan’s new laws on small cell towers. Small cells wireless towers refer, 
to those towers that will be placed in the road right away to help boost cellular for 
upcoming networks. More on this discussion as we receive more information 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Project Bronco 

Graphic Packaging, according to a news release from Graphic Packaging, on August 8th  
the company is planning to make the investment in either Ohio or Michigan (Kalamazoo 

Township and the City), subject to a number of conditions, including environmental 
permitting and negotiations currently underway relative to government incentives and 
labor relations. The investment is about $600 million. This will also help with US 131  

Other information  

The Kalamazoo HBA (Home Builders Association) is looking to train individuals to 
become certified contractors. 

Planning commissioner Jim Cripps, has resigned from the planning commission. Mr. 
Crips was a very dedicated commissioner who has put long hours and deep 
discussions, with regards to the plans for Kalamazoo Township. His wealth of 
knowledge will be truly missed. 

 

Upcoming Events  

K Kind  

K Kind located 521 E. Mosel Avenue in Kalamazoo Township, is delighted to announce 
that it will be having a grand opening on Thursday, August 15 at 11:00 AM.  

Cannamazoo  

Cannamazoo will be giving the Kalamazoo Township planning commissioners and/or 
any board members who would like to attend a tour of the facility on Friday, August 16th 
from 10:00 am to 11:00am 

Eastwood Block Party  

Will be August 24, 2019 from 12:00 – 4:00 PM, at 2260 Coy.  

 

Any questions from the board 



 

 

DRAFT 
 
A Township government is limited in its ability to have an impact on the broader world but 
what it can do is, first take care of its own, starting with our own employees and facilities. 
Second we can reach out into the community and work together with the surrounding 
communities to address the issues of homelessness, unemployment and lack of education in 
our own backyard. We can work with the broader community to make sure there is access to 
good health care and good education. We can be involved with and supportive of 
organizations such as the Equity Task Force and groups working on solutions for the 
homeless. 
 
We can become a model for other communities by being good stewards of our own 
resources, encouraging good health and making sure our residents are well educated. By not 
wasting resources, and keeping our air and water; clean. and becoming a sustainable 
community we can free up resources for others and protect resources for future generations. 
 
You can find the Kalamazoo Township’s Strategic Plan Mission and goals at the end of this 
document.  I think you’ll find them to be compatible with the UN goals though not as 
inclusive of all those goals as some of us might like.  
 
Each goal can be looked at in more detail by doing a ctrl-click. The typing underneath the 
goals is a first swipe at what the Township is already doing and the second part is for all the 
other things we could/should be doing.  
 
The UN’s  17 sustainable development goals (SDGs) to transform our world: 
 
GOAL 1: No Poverty 
Working to bring in more businesses and create more jobs. Made changes to zoning to be more friendly to 
start-ups.  
 
What else should we be doing?. 
 
GOAL 2: Zero Hunger 
Supportive of the right to feed yourself, allowing hens for egg production and allowing composting for soil 
improvement for gardens. Making sure there are grocery stores with healthy food that can be accessed by 
walking or transit from all neighborhoods 
 
What else should we be doing? 
  
GOAL 3: Good Health and Well-being 
Creating a walkable, bikeable community to get people out exercising and meeting their neighbors, 
preventing isolation, and getting eyes on the street. Also to provide transportation for those that can’t afford a 
car or want to shrink their carbon footprint. 
Passed a 5 foot rule for passing bicycles. 
Support mass transit so people can get to medical facilities. 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
 

https://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/?page_id=6226&preview=true
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal2.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal3.html


 

 

GOAL 4: Quality Education 
We’re a “Promise community” 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
GOAL 5: Gender Equality 
Passed a broad non-discrimination ordinance in 2013 that applies to housing, work and education 
Hiring female police officers 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
GOAL 6: Clean Water and Sanitation 
Contract with the City of Kalamazoo to provide sewer and water 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
GOAL 7: Affordable and Clean Energy 
Working to make Township facilities more efficient: replaced old roof with higher R-Value roof, replacing 
lights with LEDs, installing new HVAC 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
GOAL 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth 
Working on developing TIFF district and/or corridor improvement authorities and working on brownfield 
redevelopment to help businesses thrive. 
 
What else should we be doing? 
  
GOAL 9: Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure 
Brought all of our roads up to good conditions. Working to make US 131 more accessible for businesses.  
We direct people interested in starting new businesses to local resources that can help get them started. 
We guide them through the zoning and permitting processes so we are sure businesses starting in the 
Township are safe and appropriate for their location. We work with other governmental agencies and local 
businesses to clean up and redevelop Brownfields and blighted area 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
GOAL 10: Reduced Inequality 
What else should we be doing? 
 
GOAL 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities 
Working on housing solutions with neighboring communities.  
Doing rental inspections and holding landlords to safety standards 
Supporting local mass transit and making sure there are safe clear sidewalks, passed a complete streets 
policy. 
We offer and encourage curbside recycling, yard waste composting and household hazardous waste 
programs. 
 
What else should we be doing? 
Learn and honor our own history and heritage 
Work to attract clean businesses and promote energy efficiency and renewable energy 
Encourage more composting 
Develop systems and green infrastructure  for dealing with storms and high water 

http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal4.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal5.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal6.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal7.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal8.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal9.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal10.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal11.html


 

 

  
GOAL 12: Responsible Consumption and Production 
 
What else should we be doing? 
Develop a sustainable purchasing policy for the Township 
Promote use of HHW facility and reduction in use of Toxic Chemicals 
Teach staff and community about recycling and composting 
Work on getting an environmentally friendly investment fund through our retirement company 
Emphasize experiences over   
 
GOAL 13: Climate Action 
Working on emergency response plan with other governmental agencies 
Passed climate emergency resolution 
Working on Climate Action Plan 
Upgrading energy efficiency of Township facilities 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
GOAL 14: Life Below Water 
Encourage the use of the household hazardous waste facility to keep pollutants from getting into the water 
cycle 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
GOAL 15: Life on Land 
Maintain parks and green spaces 
 
What else should we be doing? 
Promotion and education on native plants 
 
GOAL 16: Peace and Justice Strong Institutions 
The Township has become more transparent by posting more information on the internet 
Police officers have car and body cameras 
Police officers are trained in de-escalation techniques 
 
What else should we be doing? 
Become involved in an international exchange of local officials again 
 
GOAL 17: Partnerships to achieve the Goal 
 
What else should we be doing? 
 
 
 
Kalamazoo Township Strategic Plan 2017 
 
Goal 1: Vibrant strong community and neighborhoods  
 
Goal 2:   Strong community identity and engagement  

Goal 3: Efficient and effective operations and collaborations 

http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal12.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal13.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal14.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal15.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal16.html
http://www.un.org/development/desa/disabilities/envision2030-goal17.html


 

 

Goal 4: Diverse and inclusive neighborhoods and governmental services 

 
Goal 5: Financial stewardship 

 
 
Kalamazoo Township Board Guiding Principles from 2017 Strategic Plan 
 
 

  
 

  
 

 

 

 

Our 
Vision 

We envision Kalamazoo Charter Township with enhanced 

Community identity and engagement 

Diversity, inclusion, and equity 

Respect for all human rights 

Openness and welcome to all populations 

Economic opportunity 

 Intergovernmental collaboration 

Our 
Mission 

The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government 
services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and economically 
viable community to live, work, learn, and play. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Our 

Core Values 

As members of Kalamazoo Charter Township, our values guide our

governance and our interactions with residents, visitors, and each

other. We commit to being: 

Ethical 

Dealing with our community honestly, fairly, and justly 
 

Respectful 

Honoring the value of everyone we interact with 
 

Transparent 

Practicing openness in our decisions and actions 
 

Responsive 

Providing optimal service proactively and effectively 
 

Competent 

Continually building knowledge to best serve the people 
 

Economical 

Prudent with our community’s precious financial resources 



 

 

 









 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF KALAMAZOO 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES – SPECIAL WORK SESSION  

Monday, July 22, 2019 
                                 
The Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo held a Special Work Session 
on Monday, July 22, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the Board Room of the Charter Township of 
Kalamazoo Administration Building, 1720 Riverview Drive, Kalamazoo, Michigan 49004-1099, 
for the purpose of discussing Special Work Session Agenda items, and any other business that 
may legally come before the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo, 
Kalamazoo County. 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Donald Martin, Clerk Mark Miller, Treasurer Sherine Miller, Trustees 

Jeremy Hathcock, Nicolette Leigh, Steven Leuty, Jennifer Strebs. 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Township Manager Dexter Mitchell, Finance Director Nancy Desai, 

Attorneys Roxanne Seeber and Seth Koches. 
 
Supervisor Martin called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
Item 1 – DISCUSSION REGARDING THE FINAL 2018 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES 
REPORT  
Finance Director Desai gave this report. There was discussion about the practice of over-
budgeting, where we see higher budgetary requests than are actually needed by the end of 
the year. Desai gave an overview of sources of income, changes from expected, and the 
fact that although we are trying to fill police officer positions, we have not been able to at a 
rate to keep up with officers leaving. There was also discussion about calls for service to 
police being higher than usual. Several Board members would like to have more detailed 
reporting from our Police Department as to patterns of calls. There was further discussion 
about the possibility of a Community Oversight Board.  
 
Item 2 – DISCUSSION REGARDING GRAND PRAIRIE GOLF COURSE 
Manager Mitchell explained that the Township did waive the 15% of revenue due to the 
Township under the current contract for 2019. The managers (Ann Marie and Jim Roschek) 
spoke about the history of the management of the golf course. We have basically the same 
contract as we started with in 1991. League play is down, so revenues are down. They are 
having difficulty under the existing agreement making ends meet. They would like to 
continue for a few more years.  
 
Supervisor Martin reported some conversations that have been happening about possible 
solutions. We know that it is not going to be a profit center for the Township in any case.  
 
Mr. Roschek said that Fall is a season where things must be done to maintain the facility, 
when revenues are down. So we have a decision to make about the future. If they are not 
sure of a contract revision in their favor, they cannot make these investments. They still 
enjoy working with kids and Special Olympics.  
 
Trustee Strebs hoped that we could find a way to serve alcohol, and that might make a 
difference to business. 
 
Township resident George Cochran mentioned that there may be a Township Ordinance 
prohibiting alcohol on Township property. 
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Attorney Seeber said that beer and wine licenses are much less expensive.  
 
Treasurer Miller said that liability insurance costs would increase, and there might be a 
problem with kids being present.  
 
Mr. Roschek said that we could support this at less money as a golf facility than as a park. It 
might cost $150,000 to maintain as a park.  
 
In May, the Board asked the Supervisor and Manager to negotiate a new contract and make 
some recommendations. Attorney Seth Koches has made some progress in looking at our 
current contract. The Supervisor and Manager will continue to work on a new contract. 
 
Item 3 – DISCUSSION REGARDING AMENDMENTS TO GENERAL ORDINANCES 
Clerk Miller discussed the background of his re-codifying our ordinances, and realizing that 
some of them are obsolete. The proposed ordinance repeals or amends 16 of our current 
ordinances. The Clerk reviewed and answered questions about the first 10 sections in the 
time available. Discussion will continue at our Work Session on August 12. 
 
Item 4 – DISCUSSION REGARDING ITEMS ON THE REGULAR AGENDA 
None. 
 
Item 5 – MANAGER’S UPDATE 
None. 
 
Item 6 – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None.  
 
 
Adjourned 7:17 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
____________________ 
Mark E. Miller, Clerk, Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
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CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF KALAMAZOO 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

July 22, 2019 
 

The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo, 
Kalamazoo County, was held at 7:30 p.m., Monday, July 22, 2019 at the Charter Township of 
Kalamazoo Administrative Offices, 1720 Riverview Drive, Kalamazoo, Michigan 49004-1099. 

 
Item 1  CALL TO ORDER 
Supervisor Martin called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 
Item 2  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Treasurer Miller led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
Item 3  ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS.  
All present. 
 
Item 4  ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
None. 
    
Item 5   PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
John Baker inquired about 2018 Charles Ave., Kalamazoo Michigan. He received a letter about 
a sewer hookup and a pump in his basement. This has been going on for some months. He 
complained that he has seen no contract or bill. Also, the Township didn’t do the work, he had his 
own contractor do the work. He wants the pump out of his basement.  
 
Ron Huster, 1314 Coolidge, spoke about the golf course and suggested that we come up with a 
committee of Township residents to come up with a plan. 
 
Item 6  CONSENT AGENDA 
Clerk Miller noted one correction to the Consent Agenda.  The payment of bills should be in the 
amount of $67,707.94.  
 
Clerk Miller moved, seconded by Trustee Hathcock, to approve the consent agenda 
which included action on the following items: 
 
Approval of: 

A. Minutes of July 8, 2019 Board of Trustees Work Session Meeting  
B. Minutes of July 8, 2019 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting  
C. Payment of Bills in the amount of $67,707.94 

Receipt of: 
A. Treasurer’s Report for June 2019 
B. Budget Report for June 2019 
C. Planning and Zoning Reports for May and June 2019 

Motion carried. 
 
Item 7  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None at this meeting. 
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Item 8  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None at this meeting. 
 
Item 9  NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item 9A REQUEST TO APPROVE RENEWAL OF SALVAGE YARD/USED CAR LOT 

LICENSES FOR 2019 BASED ON THE REVIEW BY THE PLANNING AND 
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

 
Manager Mitchell explained that Zoning Administrator Patrick Hudson put together the list of 
permits of salvage yards. One additional dealer came in today and is included in the list. 
 
Trustee Leuty moved, seconded by Trustee Hathcock, to approve the renewal of salvage 
yard / used car lot licenses for 2019, with the addition the Manager noted. 
 
Trustee Leigh asked about those in operation who have not paid. Manager Mitchell will look into 
this. 
 
Motion carried.  
 
Item 9B REQUEST TO ACCEPT ORDINANCE 610, AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND 

AMEND OTHER GENERAL ORDINANCES, FOR FIRST READING 
Clerk Miller explained that a number of our Ordinances are obsolete, and others need revision 
to be consistent. 
 
Clerk Miller moved, seconded by Trustee Leuty, to accept Ordinance 610 for first reading.  
 
Trustee Leigh said that she would like this to be tabled, in that we had not reviewed all of the 
changes during our work session. Treasurer Miller concurred. Trustee Leuty explained that this 
does not mean anything was finalized, and we would have an opportunity to complete our 
review at the next work session. Trustee Strebs expressed support for moving ahead. 
 
Roll call vote 5-2 in favor (Trustee Leigh, Treasurer Miller), motion carried.  
 
Item 9C PRESENTATION OF SUMMARY OF KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP’S BULK 

TRASH PICKUP, JULY 2019, TRUSTEE LEUTY 
Trustee Leuty explained that 13% of Township residents participated in bulk trash pickup this 
July. Last Spring, participation was between 14% and 23%.   
 
Item 10 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
None. 
  
Item 11 BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
Trustee Hathcock reported that the Planning Commission met and will have another meeting on 
the recreational marihuana rules.  
 
Trustee Leigh read an article “The God of Love had a really bad week.” Locally, we have had 
two killings.   
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Clerk Miller thanked Trustee Leigh for mentioning Prosecutor Getting’s domestic violence court 
suggestion. 
 
Treasurer Miller thanked John Baker for presenting his concerns. Also thanked Ron Huster for 
suggesting a committee to explore options for the golf course. Asked that the Board pass an 
accurate and balanced budget for 2020.  
 
Trustee Leuty reported that he experienced a wind storm recently. Damage was caused locally. 
He has his weather radio more handy now. Wilson Recreation Area repairs are still in process. 
 
Supervisor Martin mentioned we have weather radios available for $25. This Friday is the 
annual Westwood Ice Cream Social, starting at 6:30.  
 
Item 12 ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
No report. 
 
Item 13 MANAGER REPORT 
Manager Mitchell mentioned the death of Shequita Lewis. He was scheduled to meet with her 
the day she died. 
 
Item 14  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
John Baker 2218 Charles Ave. continued to discuss his sewer issue. He wants the Township to 
re-run the sewer line. He stated that he has not received a proper response from the Township. 
He requested a hard copy of the minutes of this meeting.  
 
Pastor Robert Ryan of Israel of God Church, 625 Stassen Ave., is still considering selling the 
property. He wants to know if the Ordinance was the same in the area. 
 
Item 15 ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 
8:10 p.m. 
 
  
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:               Respectfully submitted, 

Supervisor Donald D. Martin    
Clerk Mark E. Miller 
Treasurer Sherine M. Miller 
Trustee Jeremy L. Hathcock 
Trustee Nicolette Leigh 
Trustee Steven C. Leuty     __________________________ 
Trustee Jennifer A. Strebs     Mark E. Miller, Clerk 
             

   
ABSENT:       Attested to by, 

 
         

ALSO PRESENT:  
Attorney Roxanne Seeber     ___________________________ 
Manager Dexter Mitchell     Donald D. Martin, Supervisor 
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User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/13/2019 - 08/13/2019
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #171123
NOpen14.00 14.00 08/08/201908/08/2019ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY25889

57569265

14.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #172902
NOpen22.00 22.00 08/08/201908/08/2019ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY25890

87230047

22.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #172902
NOpen7.00 7.00 08/08/201908/08/2019ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY25891

57569353

7.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #172902
NOpen11.00 11.00 08/08/201908/08/2019ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY25892

87215820

11.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #172898
NOpen14.00 14.00 08/08/201908/08/2019ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY25893

57569352

14.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #172898
NOpen22.00 22.00 08/08/201908/08/2019ABSOPURE WATER COMPANY25894

87224927

22.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKHANDLES/VALVES
NOpen6,932.40 6,932.40 08/08/201908/08/2019APOLLO FIRE EQUIPMENT25857

100438

6,932.40 FIRE EQUIPMENT811-440-983.00

08/08/2019MONICAKINSTALL LABEL
NOpen16.30 16.30 08/08/201908/08/2019PREMIER SAFETY25856

04162722

16.30 PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE206-336-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKLEGAL SUPPORT
NOpen13,927.72 13,927.72 08/08/201908/08/2019BAUCKHAM, SPARKS, THALL, 25923

080719

450.00 LEGAL SERVICES-BD. MEET.101-200-826.00
4,164.22 LEGAL SERVICE-GEN. TWP.101-200-827.00
3,870.50 LEGAL SERVICES - GEN. TWP.101-400-827.00

270.00 LEGAL SERVICE101-209-827.00
2,128.00 LEGAL207-301-827.00
2,955.00 Legal Service-Gen. Twp.101-310-827.00

90.00 LEGAL883-520-827.00
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08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #700000115
NOpen1,063.86 1,063.86 08/08/201908/08/2019BRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP25917

080419

1,063.86 EMPLOYMENT TESTING207-301-812.00

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #1000 1699 4202
NOpen162.57 162.57 08/08/201908/08/2019CONSUMERS ENERGY25880

201628786205

162.57 UTILITIES - FUEL101-200-923.00

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #1000 2210 4622
NOpen317.00 317.00 08/08/201908/08/2019CONSUMERS ENERGY25886

203319650816

298.46 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-921.02
18.54 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-923.02

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #1000 2210 4390
NOpen154.02 154.02 08/08/201908/08/2019CONSUMERS ENERGY25887

203319650815

154.02 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-923.02

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #1000 2210 5132
NOpen548.36 548.36 08/08/201908/08/2019CONSUMERS ENERGY25888

203319650817

548.36 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-921.02

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #1030 2066 4423
NOpen723.26 723.26 08/08/201908/08/2019CONSUMERS ENERGY25881

204387572092

723.26 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC219-448-921.00

08/08/2019MONICAKCHARGERS/LANYARDS
NOpen1,201.06 1,201.06 08/08/201908/08/2019DOUGLASS SAFETY SYSTEMS LLC25871

44998

1,201.06 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT206-336-747.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMINI-EXCAVATOR
NOpen187.50 187.50 08/08/201908/08/2019FADER EQUIPMENT, INC.25874

129097

187.50 RENTALS - EQUIPMENT101-276-945.00

08/08/2019MONICAKWATER
NOpen19.00 19.00 08/08/201908/08/2019GORDON WATER25853

1797871

19.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-200-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKOFFICE SUPPLIES
NOpen305.27 305.27 08/08/201908/08/2019INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC25867

1939867-0

305.27 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-200-727.00
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08/08/2019MONICAKCABLE TIES
NOpen6.26 6.26 08/08/201908/08/2019INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC25882

1939867-1

6.26 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-191-727.00

08/08/2019MONICAKOFFICE SUPPLIES
NOpen40.11 40.11 08/08/201908/08/2019INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC25913

1940504-0

40.11 OFFICE SUPPLIES207-301-727.00

08/08/2019MONICAKINSPECTIONS
NOpen550.00 550.00 08/08/201908/08/2019KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY25883

19-06-07

550.00 PURCHASED SERVICE101-310-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKNOTICES
NOpen461.37 461.37 08/08/201908/08/2019MLIVE MEDIA GROUP25919

0009234000

461.37 NOTICES101-400-903.00

08/08/2019MONICAKNOTICES
NOpen481.00 481.00 08/08/201908/08/2019MLIVE MEDIA GROUP25920

0009260853

481.00 NOTICES AND PUBLICATIONS101-200-903.00

08/08/2019MONICAKHHW
NOpen326.90 326.90 08/08/201908/08/2019KAL. COUNTY HEALTH & COMM SERVICES25850

14-0021886

326.90 PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE206-336-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKSIRENS - SUPPORT/MAINT
NOpen175.00 175.00 08/08/201908/08/2019KRESA25910

076588

175.00 SOFTWARE PROGRAMS207-301-742.00

08/08/2019MONICAKDUTY BELT
NOpen58.87 58.87 08/08/201908/08/2019KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY, INC.25904

IN114390

58.87 UNIFORMS/PERSONAL EQUIPMENT207-301-748.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC EQUIPMENT
NOpen211.65 211.65 08/08/201908/08/2019KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY, INC.25924

IN114606

211.65 UNIFORMS/PERSONAL EQUIPMENT207-301-748.00

08/08/2019MONICAKREPAIR/INSTALL PUMP MOTOR
NOpen1,282.34 1,282.34 08/08/201908/08/2019MALL CITY MECHANICAL, INC.25872

M011157

1,282.34 PURCHASED SERVICE101-265-811.00
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08/08/2019MONICAKREPAIR AIR HANDLER
NOpen1,565.17 1,565.17 08/08/201908/08/2019MALL CITY MECHANICAL, INC.25875

M010981

1,565.17 PURCHASED SERVICE101-265-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen109.00 109.00 08/08/201908/08/2019MENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST25873

8314

109.00 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen157.15 157.15 08/08/201908/08/2019MENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST25876

9558

157.15 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen89.81 89.81 08/08/201908/08/2019MENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST25877

9541

89.81 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen86.85 86.85 08/08/201908/08/2019MENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST25878

9459

86.85 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen2,026.33 2,026.33 08/08/201908/08/2019MENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST25896

9886

2,026.33 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen179.34 179.34 08/08/201908/08/2019MENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST25897

9833

179.34 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKOIL CANGE/TIE ROD/ALIGNMENT
NOpen219.80 219.80 08/08/201908/08/2019MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL POLICE25906

2641

219.80 MAINT. - VEHICLE207-301-939.00

08/08/2019MONICAKOIL CHANGE/INSPECTION
NOpen126.50 126.50 08/08/201908/08/2019MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL POLICE25907

2634

126.50 MAINT. - VEHICLE207-301-939.00

08/08/2019MONICAKBRAKE REPAIR
NOpen295.82 295.82 08/08/201908/08/2019MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL POLICE25908

2643

295.82 MAINT. - VEHICLE207-301-939.00
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08/08/2019MONICAKBRAKE REPAIR
NOpen513.84 513.84 08/08/201908/08/2019MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL POLICE25909

2625

513.84 MAINT. - VEHICLE207-301-939.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen42.37 42.37 08/08/201908/08/2019MULDER'S LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES25858

508105

42.37 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKTOPSOIL
NOpen66.00 66.00 08/08/201908/08/2019MULDER'S LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES25865

508459

66.00 MAINT. - GROUNDS101-276-932.00

08/08/2019MONICAKTOPSOIL
NOpen22.00 22.00 08/08/201908/08/2019MULDER'S LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES25884

508531

22.00 MAINT. - GROUNDS101-276-932.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen44.74 44.74 08/08/201908/08/2019RIDGE COMPANY25851

141129

44.74 MAINT. - VEHICLE206-336-939.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen43.48 43.48 08/08/201908/08/2019RIDGE COMPANY25870

142976

43.48 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKUNIFORMS
NOpen120.48 120.48 08/08/201908/08/2019NYE UNIFORM CO.25903

709835

120.48 UNIFORMS/PERSONAL EQUIPMENT207-301-748.00

08/08/2019MONICAKSTROUD PARK
NOpen98.00 98.00 08/08/201908/08/2019JONS TO GO25848

135287

98.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-751-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKWILSON PARK
NOpen98.00 98.00 08/08/201908/08/2019JONS TO GO25849

135288

98.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-751-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen36.75 36.75 08/08/201908/08/2019SHARP SHOP25864

6641

36.75 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00
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08/08/2019MONICAKCREDIT PACKAGES
NOpen65.67 65.67 08/08/201908/08/2019PEOPLEFACTS, LLC25921

2019070779

65.67 BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION207-301-812.01

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT #ARS.B101323711
NOpen41.00 41.00 08/08/201908/08/2019ADVANCED RADIOLOGY SERVICES25914

072219

41.00 EMPLOYMENT TESTING207-301-812.00

08/08/2019MONICAKWINDING WAY PRESSURE
NOpen75.00 75.00 08/08/201908/08/2019PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.25925

50935

75.00 ENGINEERING FEES883-520-820.00

08/08/2019MONICAKZONING MAPS
NOpen248.75 248.75 08/08/201908/08/2019PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.25926

50925

248.75 ENGINEERING SERVICES101-400-820.00

08/08/2019MONICAKANNUAL SERVICE/SUPPORT
NOpen12,582.00 12,582.00 08/08/201908/08/2019BS & A SOFTWARE25868

124782

12,582.00 SOFTWARE PROGRAMS/FEES101-200-742.00

08/08/2019MONICAKPREV MAINT
NOpen962.10 962.10 08/08/201908/08/2019EMERGENCY VEHICLE PRODUCTS25866

S0012247

962.10 MAINT. - VEHICLE206-336-939.00

08/08/2019MONICAKINSTALL CONSOLE
NOpen194.00 194.00 08/08/201908/08/2019EMERGENCY VEHICLE PRODUCTS25905

S0012239

194.00 MAINT. - VEHICLE207-301-939.00

08/08/2019MONICAKAWARDS
NOpen63.50 63.50 08/08/201908/08/2019OTTEN TROPHIES & AWARDS, LLC25898

1929

63.50 PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE206-336-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKOIL CHANGE
NOpen44.09 44.09 08/08/201908/08/2019GALESBURG FORD25911

26038061

44.09 MAINT. - VEHICLE207-301-939.00

08/08/2019MONICAKOIL CHANGE
NOpen44.09 44.09 08/08/201908/08/2019GALESBURG FORD25912

26038147

44.09 MAINT. - VEHICLE207-301-939.00
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08/08/2019MONICAKSPECIAL BURN
NOpen244.80 244.80 08/08/201908/08/2019KENT COUNTY TREASURER/DPW25899

3138513

244.80 MISC. EXPENSE207-301-956.00

08/08/2019MONICAKLAWN CARE
NOpen90.00 90.00 08/08/201908/08/2019LEHRMAN LAWN CARE25852

2588

90.00 MAINT. - GROUNDS101-265-932.00

08/08/2019MONICAKLAWN CARE/WEED ORD
NOpen2,375.00 2,375.00 08/08/201908/08/2019LEHRMAN LAWN CARE25918

2641

1,955.00 MAINT. - GROUNDS101-265-932.00
420.00 PURCHASED SERVICE101-310-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen61.70 61.70 08/08/201908/08/2019LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.25854

10103

61.70 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen23.51 23.51 08/08/201908/08/2019LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.25855

25175

23.51 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen41.76 41.76 08/08/201908/08/2019LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.25859

25637

41.76 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen159.66 159.66 08/08/201908/08/2019LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.25860

25651

159.66 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen859.58 859.58 08/08/201908/08/2019LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.25861

25869

859.58 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen880.90 880.90 08/08/201908/08/2019LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.25862

86231

880.90 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00

08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen801.00 801.00 08/08/201908/08/2019LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.25863

86232

801.00 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00
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08/08/2019MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen328.63 328.63 08/08/201908/08/2019LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.25869

27887

328.63 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT206-336-747.00

08/08/2019MONICAKBLADES
NOpen37.98 37.98 08/08/201908/08/2019EXTREME POWER EQUIPMENT25895

47618

37.98 PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE206-336-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKLEGAL SUPPORT
NOpen2,704.00 2,704.00 08/08/201908/08/2019MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK25922

1445209

1,950.00 LEGAL207-301-827.00
754.00 LEGAL SERVICE-GEN. TWP.101-200-827.00

08/08/2019MONICAKPAGERS
NOpen3,156.00 3,156.00 08/08/201908/08/2019STATE SYSTEMS - RADIO INC25879

2019080216

3,156.00 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT206-336-747.00

08/08/2019MONICAKPRINTERS
NOpen6,754.83 6,754.83 08/08/201908/08/2019TELE-RAD, INC.25900

893389

6,754.83 NEW EQUIPMENT810-440-983.00

08/08/2019MONICAKLAPTOPS
NOpen35,499.16 35,499.16 08/08/201908/08/2019TELE-RAD, INC.25901

893440

35,499.16 NEW EQUIPMENT810-440-983.00

08/08/2019MONICAKACCT ID #299323
NOpen50.00 50.00 08/08/201908/08/2019TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE25915

080119

50.00 INVESTIGATIVE OPERATIONS207-301-782.00

08/08/2019MONICAKCOPIER
NOpen370.49 370.49 08/08/201908/08/2019XEROX CORPORATION25885

097640085

370.49 PURCHASED SERVICE101-200-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKCOPIER
NOpen211.06 211.06 08/08/201908/08/2019XEROX CORPORATION25916

097640084

211.06 PURCHASED SERVICE207-301-811.00

08/08/2019MONICAKTOWING
NOpen55.00 55.00 08/08/201908/08/2019MCDONALD'S TOWING25902

739547

55.00 INVESTIGATIVE OPERATIONS207-301-782.00
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104,208.51 104,208.51 # of Invoices:              79  # Due:    79           Totals:
0.00 0.00 # of Credit Memos:           0  # Due:     0           Totals:

104,208.51 104,208.51 Net of Invoices and Credit Memos:

--- TOTALS BY FUND ---

33,500.32 33,500.32 101 - GENERAL
12,779.90 12,779.90 206 - FIRE
7,853.64 7,853.64 207 - POLICE

723.26 723.26 219 - STREET LIGHTS
42,253.99 42,253.99 810 - POLICE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
6,932.40 6,932.40 811 - FIRE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

165.00 165.00 883 - SEWER IMPROVEMENT

--- TOTALS BY DEPT/ACTIVITY ---

6.26 6.26 191 - ELECTION
19,288.55 19,288.55 200 - GENERAL SERVICES_ADMIN

270.00 270.00 209 - ASSESSOR
4,958.39 4,958.39 265 - MAINTENANCE

275.50 275.50 276 - CEMETERY
7,853.64 7,853.64 301 - POLICE
3,925.00 3,925.00 310 - ENFORCEMENT (ORD, UNSAFE BDG, RENTAL)

12,779.90 12,779.90 336 - FIRE
4,580.62 4,580.62 400 - PLANNING/ZONING

49,186.39 49,186.39 440 - CAPTIAL IMPROVEMENT
723.26 723.26 448 - STREET LIGHTS
165.00 165.00 520 - SEWER IMPROVEMENT
196.00 196.00 751 - RECREATION
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47.07 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRCOLOMA CHARTER TOWNSHIP07031945855POOL07/03/2019

205.52 101-200-811.00PURCHASED SERVICECHARTER COMMUNICATIONS061487706231945856POOL07/03/2019

348.94 207-301-853.02RADIO TOWER T1 LINEAT&T269R01129406F45857POOL07/03/2019

157.32 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESMCKESSON MEDICAL SURGICAL5371202645858POOL07/03/2019

75.36 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES5374190945858

27.44 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES5394926645858

700.00 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES5483308045858

960.12 

467.00 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRCITY OF SPRINGFIELD190000273145859POOL07/03/2019

2,654.41 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRWEX BANK6005102345860POOL07/03/2019

900.54 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRWILLS AUTO SERVICEJ00232345861POOL07/03/2019

310.00 207-301-782.00INVESTIGATIVE OPERATIONSROBERTO ZUNIGA07031945862POOL07/03/2019

54.30 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRGALLS, INC.01296256545863POOL07/03/2019

36.00 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRSTAPLES CREDIT PLAN06191945864POOL07/03/2019

21,687.14 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTROAD COMMISSION OF KALAMAZOO COUNTY521891086BOND07/08/2019

3,769.00 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTMARATHON PETROLEUM COMPANY LP0707191087BOND07/08/2019

348.00 206-336-747.00SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENTAPPROVED PROTECTION SYSTEMS1666513845823POOL07/09/2019

68.00 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE1666526945823

416.00 

22.02 101-200-814.00PURCHASED MAINT. SERVICEAPPLIED IMAGING136297345824POOL07/09/2019

103.05 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEPREMIER SAFETY0416149345825POOL07/09/2019

585.00 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE0416141345825

2,455.00 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE0416132145825

3,143.05 

150.00 101-200-826.00LEGAL SERVICES-BD. MEET.BAUCKHAM, SPARKS, THALL, 07021945826POOL07/09/2019

2,569.90 101-200-827.00LEGAL SERVICE-GEN. TWP.07021945826

375.00 101-209-827.00LEGAL SERVICE07021945826

3,170.00 101-310-827.00Legal Service-Gen. Twp.07021945826

1,224.58 101-400-827.00LEGAL SERVICES - GEN. TWP.07021945826

75.00 206-336-827.00LEGAL SERVICE07021945826

810.00 207-301-827.00LEGAL07021945826

8,374.48 
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31.84 207-301-921.00RAVINE TOWER SITE - ELECTRICCONSUMERS ENERGY20492146376045827POOL07/09/2019

29.51 883-520-921.00UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20216269169045827

61.35 

52.49 206-336-934.00MAINT. - MACHINESTEENSMA LAWN & POWER EQUIPMENT62215945828POOL07/09/2019

3,033.42 206-336-742.00SOFTWARE PROGRAMSIMAGETREND, INC.11711345829POOL07/09/2019

10,000.00 207-301-827.00LEGALTOKIO MARINE HCC-PUBLIC RISK GROUP06031945830POOL07/09/2019

2,005.55 206-336-747.00SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENTDOUGLASS SAFETY SYSTEMS LLC4475745831POOL07/09/2019

258.50 101-276-945.00RENTALS - EQUIPMENTGOGGIN RENTALS18657045832POOL07/09/2019

489.35 101-200-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIESJB PRINTING COMPANY4785145833POOL07/09/2019

60.62 101-276-932.00MAINT. - GROUNDSKALAMAZOO LANDSCAPE SUPPLIESIN015468945834POOL07/09/2019

6,874.00 226-527-811.00SOLID WASTEKAL. COUNTY HEALTH & COMM SERVICES14-002169345835POOL07/09/2019

76,309.20 402-265-975.00BUILDING IMPROVEMENTSKALLEWARD GROUP, INC.427545836POOL07/09/2019

20.98 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESMENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST706845837POOL07/09/2019

458.87 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES699745837

89.94 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES675345837

12.58 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES688145837

72.00 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING685545837

72.00 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING686445837

126.95 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING698445837

110.49 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING686845837

29.99 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING690445837

10.48 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING647845837

63.65 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING646145837

528.21 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING637845837

47.39 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING640045837

1,643.53 

540.00 207-301-812.00EMPLOYMENT TESTINGROBERT LAMSON, LLC273345838POOL07/09/2019

16.50 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESMULDER'S LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES50462445839POOL07/09/2019

31.53 101-265-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESNETWORK SERVICES COMPANYI441247245840POOL07/09/2019

33.41 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESECOLAB390537245841POOL07/09/2019

4,524.00 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDINGOVERHEAD DOOR CO OF KALAMAZOO, INC.INVOHD00016131045842POOL07/09/2019

1,706.00 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDINGINVOHD00016130945842

6,230.00 
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1,009.00 101-276-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEPONTEM SOFTWARE BY RIA0000764945843POOL07/09/2019

98.00 101-751-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESJONS TO GO13344045844POOL07/09/2019

98.00 101-751-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES13344145844

196.00 

271.86 206-336-747.00SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENTSHARP SHOP659445845POOL07/09/2019

120.00 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICESTATE OF  MICHIGANBLR43162045846POOL07/09/2019

60.00 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEBLR43151745846

60.00 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEBLR43153145846

240.00 

315.40 811-440-983.08MAINT - 1219 WOODROWTWP. OF KALAMAZOO07021945847POOL07/09/2019

276.50 811-440-983.10MAINT - 1220 NASSAU070219A45847

591.90 

687.50 101-200-820.00ENGINEERING SERVICESPREIN & NEWHOF, INC.4990745848POOL07/09/2019

51.18 101-400-820.00ENGINEERING SERVICES4991345848

75.00 871-441-820.00ENGINEERING FEES4987645848

129,093.39 884-520-820.00SAW ENGINEERING FEES4985945848

129,907.07 

2,371.80 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEHELPNET2523445849POOL07/09/2019

22.72 101-265-931.00MAINT. - BUILDINGLOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.2513145850POOL07/09/2019

116.19 101-265-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING2563145850

170.97 101-276-932.00MAINT. - GROUNDS92510845850

51.22 206-336-732.00DUES/SUBS/PUBL91074045850

51.29 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING2595045850

412.39 

605.48 101-265-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLEMEEKHOF TIRE OF KALAMAZOO701310-7145851POOL07/09/2019

3,625.00 101-400-821.00PLANNING CONSULTANTW.E. UPJOHN INSTITUTE FOR34054 INV #3745852POOL07/09/2019

49.00 101-265-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEREPUBLIC SERVICES #2490249-00641344145853POOL07/09/2019

243.25 101-265-811.00PURCHASED SERVICE0249-00641333645853

45.50 101-276-811.00PURCHASED SERVICE0249-00641333645853

45.50 101-751-811.00PURCHASED SERVICE0249-00641333645853

203.79 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE0249-00641333645853

587.04 

458.11 101-310-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEVANDAM & KRUISINGA, INC.2670145854POOL07/09/2019

18,198.26 219-448-921.00UTILITIES - ELECTRICCONSUMERS ENERGY20465444270145865POOL07/15/2019
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14.00 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESABSOPURE WATER COMPANY5751582345866POOL07/19/2019

22.00 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES8718474045866

7.00 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES5751591445866

16.50 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES8719107745866

14.00 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES5751591345866

73.50 

487.95 727-000-271.00HIDTA MONEYMATTHEW HART07181945867POOL07/19/2019

210.00 727-000-271.00HIDTA MONEYLYLE MCGRATH07181945868POOL07/19/2019

328.00 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRALL-TRONICS, INC.8981745869POOL07/19/2019

10.00 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRBERRIEN COUNTY TREASURER07151945870POOL07/19/2019

210.00 727-000-271.00HIDTA MONEYBRYAN STUCK07181945871POOL07/19/2019

487.95 727-000-271.00HIDTA MONEYJARED DIEKMAN07181945872POOL07/19/2019

127.08 101-200-923.00UTILITIES - FUELCONSUMERS ENERGY20501045919645873POOL07/19/2019

26.73 101-751-921.00UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20679004613245873

492.89 206-336-921.01UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20225170220845873

57.20 206-336-921.01UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20225170220945873

206.09 206-336-921.02UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20403154191745873

558.67 206-336-921.02UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20403154191845873

25.40 206-336-921.03UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20598933577345873

94.52 206-336-921.03UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20572238020645873

100.45 206-336-923.01UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS20225170220845873

14.55 206-336-923.02UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS20403154191745873

104.79 206-336-923.02UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS20403154191645873

22.24 206-336-923.03UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS20323063237045873

1,830.61 

710.15 219-448-921.00UTILITIES - ELECTRICCONSUMERS ENERGY20296360792345874POOL07/19/2019

20,556.25 219-448-921.00UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20109488364245874

21,266.40 

50.00 701-000-276.01DEPOSITS - ROOM RENTALSDONNA HOSKINS07181945875POOL07/19/2019

50.00 701-000-276.01DEPOSITS - ROOM RENTALSLAVONNE JONES07181945876POOL07/19/2019

50.00 701-000-276.01DEPOSITS - ROOM RENTALSALICE MOORE07181945877POOL07/19/2019

50.00 701-000-276.01DEPOSITS - ROOM RENTALSELIZABETH MYLES07181945878POOL07/19/2019

50.00 701-000-276.01DEPOSITS - ROOM RENTALSIRMA WELL07181945879POOL07/19/2019
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409.38 101-200-811.00PURCHASED SERVICECHARTER COMMUNICATIONS110962007011945880POOL07/19/2019

46.80 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE010019907011945880

84.99 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE028475307011945880

84.99 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE028481107011945880

89.88 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE002594107011945880

84.99 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE028482907011945880

133.22 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE002622007011945880

934.25 

22.01 101-200-927.00UTILITIES - WATERKALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER06241945881POOL07/19/2019

98.13 101-200-927.00UTILITIES - WATER061219A45881

88.72 101-200-927.00UTILITIES - WATER061219B45881

371.67 101-751-927.00UTILITIES - WATER06141945881

31.74 101-751-927.00UTILITIES - WATER062419A45881

58.13 101-751-927.00UTILITIES - WATER061419A45881

70.66 206-336-927.02UTILITIES - WATER061419B45881

38.69 206-336-927.03UTILITIES - WATER06121945881

71.65 206-336-927.04UTILITIES - WATER06171945881

851.40 

302.38 101-265-751.00GAS & OILKALAMAZOO OIL CO.06281945882POOL07/19/2019

1,201.49 206-336-751.00GAS & OIL06291945882

1,993.06 207-301-751.00GAS & OIL06301945882

3,496.93 

240.00 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRLARRY EIB35861145883POOL07/19/2019

161.82 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRSAM'S CLUB07021945884POOL07/19/2019

949.07 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRMICHIGAN EXHAUST AND BRAKE2447645885POOL07/19/2019

164.45 206-336-853.00TELEPHONEAT&T269R01036907E45886POOL07/19/2019

361.84 207-301-853.02RADIO TOWER T1 LINE269R01129407F45886

526.29 

75.00 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRRICOH USA, INC.108168034945887POOL07/19/2019

65.00 207-301-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLESTATE OF MICHIGAN07121945888POOL07/19/2019

96.51 101-200-853.00TELEPHONEVERIZON WIRELESS983322770445889POOL07/19/2019

379.00 206-336-853.00TELEPHONE983322770445889

998.09 207-301-853.00TELEPHONE983322770445889

1,473.60 

130.00 101-209-712.00COMPENSATION-BD. OF REVIEWSHAWN GALLAGHER07161945890POOL07/19/2019
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65.00 101-209-712.00COMPENSATION-BD. OF REVIEWJAMES RODBARD07161945891POOL07/19/2019

65.00 101-209-712.00COMPENSATION-BD. OF REVIEWJOHN W. KAILUKAITUS07161945892POOL07/19/2019

438.20 207-301-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLEWINDER POLICE EQUIPMENT2019122345893POOL07/19/2019

78.00 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRROSE PEST SOLUTIONS12048904545894POOL07/19/2019

42,980.20 226-527-811.00SOLID WASTEREPUBLIC SERVICES #2490249-00641807945895POOL07/19/2019

31,924.26 704-000-223.00KVISDK/RESA0715191364TAX07/22/2019

1,929.24 704-000-223.00KVISD071519A1364

33,853.50 

31.74 704-000-222.00COUNTYKALAMAZOO COUNTY LAND BANK0715191365TAX07/22/2019

40.68 704-000-225.01SCH. #01 - S.E.T.071519A1365

72.42 

13,642.54 704-000-226.02SCH. #32 - OPERATINGSCHOOL DISTRICT #320715191366TAX07/22/2019

10,327.85 704-000-226.03SCH. #32 - DEBT071519A1366

2,065.40 704-000-226.17SCH #32 - SINKING FUND071519B1366

26,035.79 

33,176.42 704-000-227.02SCH. #40 - OPERATINGPARCHMENT PUBLIC SCHOOLS0715191367TAX07/22/2019

29,029.09 704-000-227.03SCH. #40 - DEBT071519A1367

62,205.51 

4,177.18 704-000-214.03ADMINISTRATIVE FEETWP. OF KALAMAZOO0715191368TAX07/22/2019

16,465.00 704-000-225.01SCH. #01 - S.E.T.071519A1368

20,642.18 

40.69 704-000-225.01SCH. #01 - S.E.T.STATE OF MICHIGAN0715191369TAX07/22/2019

149.00 207-301-782.00INVESTIGATIVE OPERATIONSTEEYA BRASWELL07221945896POOL07/23/2019

129,655.91 704-000-222.00COUNTYKALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER071519A1370TAX07/24/2019

31.74 704-000-222.00COUNTY071519B1370

117,987.55 704-000-225.01SCH. #01 - S.E.T.071519C1370

12,393.37 704-000-226.01SCH. #32 - S.E.T.071519D1370

19,331.26 704-000-227.01SCH. #40 - S.E.T.071519E1370

279,399.83 

7,683.51 811-440-983.00FIRE EQUIPMENTAPOLLO FIRE EQUIPMENT10035945897POOL07/25/2019

11.10 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRBERRIEN COUNTY TREASURER07231945898POOL07/25/2019
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405.00 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRCOLOMA CHARTER TOWNSHIP19-112945899POOL07/25/2019

120.41 101-200-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIESENGINEERING INNOVATION2242745900POOL07/25/2019

4,464.18 101-200-921.00UTILITIES - ELECTRICCONSUMERS ENERGY20171775561745901POOL07/25/2019

141.06 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICECHARTER COMMUNICATIONS009570407161945902POOL07/25/2019

141.03 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE002621207161945902

282.09 

7,738.39 101-191-747.00ELECTION LAPTOPSFIRST BANKCARD07031945903POOL07/25/2019

329.00 101-101-862.00MTAFIRST BANKCARD070319A45904POOL07/25/2019

100.00 101-175-732.00MI COUNCIL OF SHRM070319A45904

135.00 101-175-732.00MI MUNICIPAL LEAGUE070319A45904

199.00 101-175-862.01FREDPRYOR CAREERTRACK070319A45904

175.00 101-223-862.01MERS OF MICHIGAN070319A45904

22.54 206-336-740.00KENDALL ELECTRIC070319A45904

31.06 207-301-742.00NCHSOFTWARE.COM070319A45904

991.60 

24.90 101-265-740.00PAYPAL - WINFORDCOMPFIRST BANKCARD070319B45905POOL07/25/2019

12.99 101-265-740.00PAYPAL - BEI070319B45905

61.89 101-751-740.00PAYPAL - ZORO.COM070319B45905

75.00 206-336-732.00STATE DEQ MEDICAL WASTE070319B45905

34.27 206-336-740.00TRACTOR SUPPLY070319B45905

205.90 206-336-740.00PAYPAL - HI TECH BAT070319B45905

143.80 206-336-740.00PAYPAL - BLAQFALGLLC070319B45905

287.92 206-336-747.00PAYPAL - BOTACH.COM070319B45905

408.90 206-336-748.00WPSG, INC.070319B45905

432.00 206-336-933.00PAYPAL - ELITE TECH070319B45905

126.95 206-336-939.00AUTOMOTIVE SPECIALTY070319B45905

978.50 206-336-939.00FLOYDS ELECTRIC SERVICE070319B45905

2,793.02 

8.49 207-301-727.00PAYPAL - BLUEKNIFECOFIRST BANKCARD070319C45906POOL07/25/2019

742.24 207-301-740.00AMAZON MKTPLC070319C45906

23.27 207-301-740.00AMAZON.COM070319C45906

25.99 207-301-810.00AMAZON MKTPLC070319C45906

1,315.06 207-301-810.00MICROSOFT STORE070319C45906

340.79 207-301-862.00BOYNE HIGHLANDS070319C45906

44.45 207-301-933.00PAYPAL - CMORENO070319C45906

21.08 207-301-956.00THE UPS STORE070319C45906

55.21 266-320-960.00AMAZON MKTPLC070319C45906
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3,322.98 810-440-983.00AMAZON.COM070319C45906

5,899.56 

1,500.00 207-301-931.65TOWER RENT - RAVINE ROADFURNITURE CITY BROADCASTING CORP07251945907POOL07/25/2019

272.80 101-200-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIESINTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC1926377-045908POOL07/25/2019

(77.76)101-200-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIESC1912683-145908

(181.44)101-200-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIESC1912683-0A45908

49.77 207-301-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIES1932594-045908

63.37 

278.25 101-200-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIESJB PRINTING COMPANY4792345909POOL07/25/2019

79.00 101-209-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIES4792345909

79.00 101-400-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIES4792345909

436.25 

495.00 101-310-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEKALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY19-06-0645910POOL07/25/2019

1,921.98 727-000-271.00HIDTA MONEYKALAMAZOO COUNTY SHERIFF DEPT07241945911POOL07/25/2019

46.25 207-301-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEKALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER07121945912POOL07/25/2019

194.30 101-200-903.00NOTICES AND PUBLICATIONSMLIVE MEDIA GROUP000918359045913POOL07/25/2019

375.42 101-200-903.00NOTICES AND PUBLICATIONS000920730045913

480.56 101-400-903.00NOTICES000920557045913

1,050.28 

77.00 207-301-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESKRESA PRINT CENTER3608045914POOL07/25/2019

106.30 207-301-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES3612645914

183.30 

2,172.98 207-301-751.00GAS & OILKALAMAZOO OIL CO.07151945915POOL07/25/2019

344.76 101-200-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEENGINEERED PROTECTION SYSTEMS, INC.A76304045916POOL07/25/2019

104.22 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEA76284645916

104.22 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEA76286345916

104.22 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEA76286445916

104.22 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEA76286245916

761.64 

4,729.00 206-336-914.00VISION - PHYSICALSBIO-CARE, INC.615645917POOL07/25/2019

325.00 101-446-969.01SIDEWALKSSANDRA SMOKER07221945918POOL07/25/2019

180.00 101-265-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEMALL CITY MECHANICAL, INC.M01055845919POOL07/25/2019

1,614.85 101-265-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEM01055745919
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1,794.85 

566.58 101-200-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEMAILFINANCEN781070345920POOL07/25/2019

60.88 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESMENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST738645921POOL07/25/2019

8.59 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES732045921

905.45 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING804945921

590.61 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING812545921

112.55 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING837545921

349.78 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING789245921

99.98 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING782345921

93.30 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDING845445921

2,221.14 

568.32 206-336-853.00TELEPHONEAT&T269342197107F45922POOL07/25/2019

27.37 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPR26996217470745922

595.69 

549.90 207-301-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLEMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL POLICE261945923POOL07/25/2019

125.00 207-301-812.00EMPLOYMENT TESTINGROBERT LAMSON, LLC275045924POOL07/25/2019

125.00 207-301-812.00EMPLOYMENT TESTING276045924

125.00 207-301-812.00EMPLOYMENT TESTING277145924

415.00 207-301-812.00EMPLOYMENT TESTING276745924

790.00 

100.56 206-336-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLERIDGE COMPANY13444745925POOL07/25/2019

35.09 206-336-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLE13522745925

43.75 206-336-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLE13577345925

122.16 207-301-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLE13841945925

301.56 

8,040.00 101-200-730.00POSTAGENEOFUNDS07101945926POOL07/25/2019

444.94 101-265-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESNETWORK SERVICES COMPANYI444200145927POOL07/25/2019

84.75 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESI443327545927

529.69 

14.00 207-301-748.00UNIFORMS/PERSONAL EQUIPMENTNYE UNIFORM CO.70095945928POOL07/25/2019

4,730.00 206-336-931.00MAINT. - BUILDINGOVERHEAD DOOR CO OF KALAMAZOO, INC.INVOHD00016193245929POOL07/25/2019

4,510.00 101-200-810.00COMPUTER SERVICEDBIX IT LLC20190497745930POOL07/25/2019

8,200.00 101-200-810.00COMPUTER SERVICE20190497845930

12,710.00 
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88.19 101-265-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESPURITY CYLINDER, INC.0078678245931POOL07/25/2019

76.43 207-301-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIESCDW GOVERNMENT, INC.STW328445932POOL07/25/2019

5,930.25 727-000-253.00FORFEITURE - OPRSTATE OF MICHIGAN551-54316445933POOL07/25/2019

826.77 727-000-271.00HIDTA MONEYSTURGIS POLICE DEPT.07241945934POOL07/25/2019

6.25 207-301-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESTWP OF KALAMAZOO/DARIEN SMITH07111945935POOL07/25/2019

62.04 207-301-747.00SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT07111945935

61.70 207-301-956.00MISC. EXPENSE07111945935

47.23 266-320-960.00TUITION/TRAINING07111945935

177.22 

1,200.00 207-301-853.01LEIN BILLINGWESTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY11297145936POOL07/25/2019

58,181.65 884-520-820.00SAW ENGINEERING FEESPREIN & NEWHOF, INC.5038845937POOL07/25/2019

197.97 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESWITMER PUBLIC SAFETYE185783145938POOL07/25/2019

223.50 207-301-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLEGALESBURG FORD2603748445939POOL07/25/2019

44.09 207-301-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLE2603748145939

267.59 

400.00 206-336-960.00TUITION/TRAININGKALAMAZOO COUNTY FIRE CHIEFS ASSOC7745940POOL07/25/2019

1,600.00 101-265-932.00MAINT. - GROUNDSLEHRMAN LAWN CARE255445941POOL07/25/2019

1,440.00 101-310-811.00PURCHASED SERVICE255445941

3,040.00 

26.53 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIESLOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.2548945942POOL07/25/2019

17.06 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES2586745942

54.12 206-336-740.00OPERATING SUPPLIES1004545942

220.39 206-336-747.00SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT2568245942

318.10 

46.99 101-265-934.00MAINT. - MACHINEEXTREME POWER EQUIPMENT4769945943POOL07/25/2019

25.00 266-320-960.00TUITION/TRAININGMACP20000597345944POOL07/25/2019

110.00 206-336-811.00PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICEMODERNISTIC CARPET, INC.0004204645945POOL07/25/2019

5,540.56 206-336-939.00MAINT. - VEHICLEMEEKHOF TIRE OF KALAMAZOO706742-7445946POOL07/25/2019

3,150.00 101-400-821.00PLANNING CONSULTANTW.E. UPJOHN INSTITUTE FOR34054 INV #3845947POOL07/25/2019

185.93 101-200-727.00OFFICE SUPPLIESSTAPLES ADVANTAGE805493307945948POOL07/25/2019

50.00 207-301-782.00INVESTIGATIVE OPERATIONSTRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE07011945949POOL07/25/2019



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 11/13Page
:

08/08/2019 04:14 PM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2019 - 07/31/2019

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

279.97 101-200-811.00PURCHASED SERVICEXEROX CORPORATION09733297345950POOL07/25/2019

250.49 207-301-811.00PURCHASED SERVICE09733297245950

530.46 

55.00 207-301-782.00INVESTIGATIVE OPERATIONSMCDONALD'S TOWING73803945951POOL07/25/2019

1,012.00 701-000-254.00TRAILER TAXKALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER07101945952POOL07/25/2019

253.00 701-000-254.00TRAILER TAX071019A45952

1,026.00 701-000-254.00TRAILER TAX07241945952

256.50 701-000-254.00TRAILER TAX072419A45952

2,547.50 

4,083.59 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTROAD COMMISSION OF KALAMAZOO COUNTY522731088BOND07/26/2019

24,332.29 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT522741088

14,731.93 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT522751088

587.47 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT522761088

8,878.21 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT522771088

1,951.71 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT522781088

1,897.53 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT523171088

95.35 850-906-970.00CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT523181088

56,558.08 

300.00 701-000-240.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROWALDI07261945953POOL07/26/2019

25.00 101-000-603.00UNCLASSIFIEDTWP. OF KALAMAZOO/SHERINE MILLER07261945954POOL07/26/2019

        208.86 UTILITIES - WATER101-200-927.00
        127.08 UTILITIES - FUEL101-200-923.00
      4,464.18 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC101-200-921.00
        569.72 NOTICES AND PUBLICATIONS101-200-903.00
         96.51 TELEPHONE101-200-853.00
      2,569.90 LEGAL SERVICE-GEN. TWP.101-200-827.00
        150.00 LEGAL SERVICES-BD. MEET.101-200-826.00
        687.50 ENGINEERING SERVICES101-200-820.00
         22.02 PURCHASED MAINT. SERVICE101-200-814.00
      1,806.21 PURCHASED SERVICE101-200-811.00
     12,710.00 COMPUTER SERVICE101-200-810.00
      8,040.00 POSTAGE101-200-730.00
      1,087.54 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-200-727.00
      7,738.39 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT101-191-747.00
        199.00 TRAVEL - CONFERENCES - STAFF101-175-862.01
        235.00 DUES/SUBS/PUBL101-175-732.00
        329.00 TRAVEL - CONFERENCES101-101-862.00
         25.00 UNCLASSIFIED101-000-603.00

--- GL TOTALS --- 

1,026,338.05 TOTAL OF 142 CHECKSTOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 12/13Page
:

08/08/2019 04:14 PM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2019 - 07/31/2019

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

        134.69 OFFICE SUPPLIES207-301-727.00
        400.00 TUITION/TRAINING206-336-960.00
      6,825.41 MAINT. - VEHICLE206-336-939.00
         52.49 MAINT. - MACHINE206-336-934.00
        432.00 MAINT. - RADIO206-336-933.00
     14,224.12 MAINT. - BUILDING206-336-931.00
         71.65 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-927.04
         38.69 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-927.03
         70.66 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-927.02
         22.24 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-923.03
        119.34 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-923.02
        100.45 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-923.01
        119.92 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-921.03
        764.76 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-921.02
        550.09 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-921.01
      4,729.00 VISION - PHYSICALS206-336-914.00
      1,111.77 TELEPHONE206-336-853.00
         75.00 LEGAL SERVICE206-336-827.00
      7,360.48 PURCHASED & MAINT. SERVICE206-336-811.00
      1,201.49 GAS & OIL206-336-751.00
        408.90 PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE206-336-748.00
      3,133.72 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT206-336-747.00
      3,033.42 SOFTWARE PROGRAMS206-336-742.00
      2,522.31 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.00
        126.22 DUES/SUBS/PUBL206-336-732.00
        461.54 UTILITIES - WATER101-751-927.00
         26.73 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC101-751-921.00
         45.50 PURCHASED SERVICE101-751-811.00
        257.89 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-751-740.00
        325.00 SIDEWALKS101-446-969.01
        480.56 NOTICES101-400-903.00
      1,224.58 LEGAL SERVICES - GEN. TWP.101-400-827.00
      6,775.00 PLANNING CONSULTANT101-400-821.00
         51.18 ENGINEERING SERVICES101-400-820.00
         79.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-400-727.00
      3,170.00 LEGAL SERVICE-GEN. TWP.101-310-827.00
      2,393.11 PURCHASED SERVICE101-310-811.00
        258.50 RENTALS - EQUIPMENT101-276-945.00
        231.59 MAINT. - GROUNDS101-276-932.00
      1,054.50 PURCHASED SERVICE101-276-811.00
        605.48 MAINT. - VEHICLE101-265-939.00
         46.99 MAINT. - MACHINE101-265-934.00
      1,600.00 MAINT. - GROUNDS101-265-932.00
        138.91 MAINT. - BUILDING101-265-931.00
      2,087.10 PURCHASED SERVICE101-265-811.00
        302.38 GAS & OIL101-265-751.00
        602.55 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.00
        175.00 TRAVEL - CONFERENCES - STAFF101-223-862.01
        375.00 LEGAL SERVICE101-209-827.00
         79.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-209-727.00
        260.00 COMPENSATION-BD. OF REVIEW101-209-712.00
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:

08/08/2019 04:14 PM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2019 - 07/31/2019

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

  1,026,338.05 TOTAL
    187,275.04 SAW ENGINEERING FEES884-520-820.00
         29.51 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC883-520-921.00
         75.00 ENGINEERING FEES871-441-820.00
     82,014.22 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT850-906-970.00
        276.50 MAINT - 1220 NASSAU811-440-983.10
        315.40 MAINT - 1219 WOODROW811-440-983.08
      7,683.51 FIRE EQUIPMENT811-440-983.00
      3,322.98 NEW EQUIPMENT810-440-983.00
      4,144.65 HIDTA MONEY727-000-271.00
     12,374.93 FORFEITURE - OPR727-000-253.00
     29,029.09 SCH. #40 - DEBT704-000-227.03
     33,176.42 SCH. #40 - OPERATING704-000-227.02
     19,331.26 SCH. #40 - S.E.T.704-000-227.01
      2,065.40 SCH #32 - SINKING FUND704-000-226.17
     10,327.85 SCH. #32 - DEBT704-000-226.03
     13,642.54 SCH. #32 - OPERATING704-000-226.02
     12,393.37 SCH. #32 - S.E.T.704-000-226.01
    134,533.92 SCH. #01 - S.E.T.704-000-225.01
     33,853.50 KVISD704-000-223.00
    129,719.39 COUNTY704-000-222.00
      4,177.18 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE704-000-214.03
        250.00 DEPOSITS - ROOM RENTALS701-000-276.01
      2,547.50 TRAILER TAX701-000-254.00
        300.00 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-240.00
     76,309.20 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS402-265-975.00
        127.44 TUITION/TRAINING266-320-960.00
     49,854.20 SOLID WASTE226-527-811.00
     39,464.66 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC219-448-921.00
         82.78 MISC. EXPENSE207-301-956.00
      1,442.85 MAINT. - VEHICLE207-301-939.00
         44.45 MAINT. - RADIO207-301-933.00
      1,500.00 TOWER RENT - RAVINE ROAD207-301-931.65
         31.84 RAVINE TOWER SITE - ELECTRIC207-301-921.00
        340.79 TRAVEL - CONFERENCES207-301-862.00
        710.78 RADIO TOWER T1 LINE207-301-853.02
      1,200.00 LEIN BILLING207-301-853.01
        998.09 TELEPHONE207-301-853.00
     10,810.00 LEGAL207-301-827.00
      1,330.00 EMPLOYMENT TESTING207-301-812.00
        296.74 PURCHASED SERVICE207-301-811.00
      1,341.05 COMPUTER SERVICE207-301-810.00
        564.00 INVESTIGATIVE OPERATIONS207-301-782.00
      4,166.04 GAS & OIL207-301-751.00
         14.00 UNIFORMS/PERSONAL EQUIPMENT207-301-748.00
         62.04 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT207-301-747.00
         31.06 SOFTWARE PROGRAMS207-301-742.00
        955.06 OPERATING SUPPLIES207-301-740.00











































Permit List 08/01/2019

OwnerParcel Number Issue Date

Building

Permit # ContractorJob Address Fee Total Const. Value

WILLIAMS, EARL F. & MARY E.PB19-06-265 527 ARTHUR AVE $170.00 $0

Work Description: Construction of 4/12 pitch roof over existing flat roof per plans

07/22/201906-13-135-580

BRENES, MANUEL J. & CONNIE S.PB19-06-320 4003 ROCKWOOD DR $170.00 $0

Work Description: Replace existing deck with same dimension deck.

NOTE: FOOTINGS TO BE MINIMUM 12" DIA.

DECK CONSTRUCTION AND  POST TO BEAM AND POST TO JOIST CONNECTIONS TO BE NOTCHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH R 507 2015
MRC.   HANDRAILS AND GUARDS TO BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 2015 MRC.

07/11/201906-06-215-200 Tri Square Builders

DOVE, MARY ELLENPB19-06-338 1409 UPLAND DR $250.00 $52,363

Work Description: Repair of walls, ceilings, floors and exterior due to fire damage.

07/19/201906-12-377-230 Wolgast Restoration

KALAMAZOO MHP, LLCPB19-06-347 1519 Olmstead/MbPk Lot 64 $150.00 $0

Work Description: Demo of mobile home

07/26/201906-24-470-010

ADAMS, BECKY LYNNPB19-06-352 3326 MAPLE AVE $100.00 $0

Work Description: Replacing boards on roof

07/29/201906-01-440-590

VANEPPS, DENISE M.PB19-06-353 721 GRAND PRE AVE $528.00 $83,874

Work Description: Demolition of existing dwelling and attached garage and construction of new 1070 s.f 1 story 2 bed 2 bath modular home. Full unfinished basement and 14' x 20'
attached garage. Per plans

07/30/201906-17-131-200

MI 2017 HIGHLAND HILLS, LLCPB19-06-355 1344 North Hills Dr $170.00 $0

Work Description: New moblie home setup.

07/31/201906-09-105-040 Integrity Manufactured Home Set

MI 2017 HIGHLAND HILLS, LLCPB19-06-356 1509 North Hills Dr $170.00 $0

Work Description: New mobile home setup.

07/31/201906-09-105-040 Integrity Manufactured Home Set



MI 2017 HIGHLAND HILLS, LLCPB19-06-357 1350 North Hills Dr $170.00 $0

Work Description: New mobile home setup.

07/31/201906-09-105-040 Integrity Manufactured Home Set

MI 2017 HIGHLAND HILLS, LLCPB19-06-358 1362 North Hills Dr $170.00 $0

Work Description: New mobile home setup.

07/31/201906-09-105-040 Integrity Manufactured Home Set

MI 2017 HIGHLAND HILLS, LLCPB19-06-359 1491 NORTH HILLS DRIVE/MBPK $170.00 $0

Work Description: New mobile home setup.

07/31/201906-09-105-040 Integrity Manufactured Home Set

MI 2017 HIGHLAND HILLS, LLCPB19-06-360 1495 NORTH HILLS DRIVE/MBPK $170.00 $0

Work Description: New mobile home setup.

07/31/201906-09-105-040 Integrity Manufactured Home Set

Total Permits For Type: 12

Total Fees For Type: $2,388.00

Total Const. Value For Type: $136,237

Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $2,388.00

Grand Total Permits: 12

Grand Total Const. Value: $136,237

Permit.PermitType  =  Building
AND
Permit.DateIssued  Between
7/1/2019 12:00:00 AM AND
7/31/2019 11:59:59 PM AND
Permit.BasicUsage  =  Residential
AND
Parcel.ParcelNumber  Starts With
6 AND
Property.City  =  Kalamazoo



Permit List 08/01/2019

OwnerParcel Number Issue Date

Special Permit

Permit # ContractorJob Address Fee Total Const. Value

FINE WOODWORKING LLCPS19-06-065 1305 HEALY ST $55.00 $0

Work Description: Safety inspection

07/29/201906-23-445-070

Total Permits For Type: 1

Total Fees For Type: $55.00

Total Const. Value For Type: $0

Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $55.00

Grand Total Permits: 1

Grand Total Const. Value: $0

Permit.PermitType  =  Special
Permit AND
Permit.DateIssued  Between
7/1/2019 12:00:00 AM AND
7/31/2019 11:59:59 PM AND
Parcel.ParcelNumber  Starts With
6 AND
Property.City  =  Kalamazoo
AND
Permit.Category  =  Hood
Suppression OR
Permit.Category  =  Other OR
Permit.Category  =  Meter Socket
Inspection OR
Permit.Category  =  Owner Request



The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn and play. 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 

08122019  10A

08/12/2019

Medicare Renewal

Manager

 X

 X

Manager Mitchell

To authorize Manager Dexter Mitchell to sign for the renewal of the Medicare Plus Blue Group PPO policy 
for 2020.

The cost for the policy has gone down 5.53 % from last year.

Support



 

600

Option0

Passive

GROUP BENEFIT and RENEWAL RATE SUMMARY

Charter Township of Kalamazoo

59957

January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020

12 Months



July 19, 2019

Effective Date of Coverage

Months of Coverage

Plan Type

Estimated Membership

Option

Option Description

2020 MA Rate PMPM $224.51

2020 PD Rate PMPM $211.61

2020 MAPD Rate PMPM $436.12

2019 MAPD Rate PMPM $461.66

PMPM Change -5.53%

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

59957-600

MAPD

MEDICARE ADVANTAGE GROUP RATE

Pharmacy Rate

Combined Rate

Members whose employer groups do not define a specific open enrollment period receive their ANOCs as early as November but no later than 15 days prior to 

the start of the new plan year.

Rate Change

To meet the expected implementation date of January 1, 2020 this benefit rate schedule must be signed by the group and returned to BCBSM by September 16, 

2019

BCBSM reserves the right to modify this quote if there are changes to the

 - benefit design included in the proposal, 

 - effective date, 

 - covered population (+/- 10%), 

 - subsequent CMS funding levels, 

 - regulatory changes, or if the above conditions are not met.

Notes and Conditions

The quoted rates are effective from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, for 12 months.

Rate calculations were made based upon CMS funding projections known at this time. If significant changes are made to funding levels, BCBSM reserves the 

right to alter the rates appropriately.

Charter Township of Kalamazoo

14

2020 MAPD PPO

January 1, 2020

12

-

The above premiums include BCBSM’s estimates of applicable Federal taxes, fees and assessments.  BCBSM’s estimates are subject to change. BCBSM will 

not reconcile or settle any amounts collected with actual amounts owed for such Federal taxes, fees, and assessments.

The Premiums shwon here include MA (medical services) and PDP (pharmacy services).  Other lines of coverage such as dental and vision are not included.

0

Medical Rate

StndPPOGrpQuote_MAPD_Passive
Renewal_PG_MAPD_Charter Township of Kalamazoo_Op0_2020 Renewal.xlsm Page 2 of 6



July 19, 2019

Effective Date of Coverage

Months of Coverage

Plan Type

Estimated Membership

Option

Option Description

MAPD

Charter Township of Kalamazoo

14

2020 MAPD PPO

January 1, 2020

12

-

0

Schedule B

OUT-OF-POCKET MAXIMUM

OUT-OF-POCKET COST-SHARE OPTIONS

PPO BENEFIT STRUCTURE 

(ACTIVE or PASSIVE)

  COINSURANCE

Office Visits / Online Visits / Consultations

Chiropractic Services

Specialist Services

Urgent Care

Facility Evaluation & Management Services

Psychiatric - Psychotherapy Services

Surgical Services / Anesthesia Services / Cardiac Catheterization / 

Cardiovascular - Therapeutic Services

Other Physician Services

(Clinical Labs - No Member Cost Share)

59957-600

No member cost-share

$30

No member cost-share

No member cost-share

No member cost-share

$65

No member cost-share

$30

$20

MEDICARE ADVANTAGE GROUP BENEFITS

$0

COST-SHARE

DEDUCTIBLE

$30

$30

No member cost-share

PASSIVE

Outpatient Facility Services

Preventive Services

Emergency Department (ER Care)

DME/P&O and Supplies 

No member cost-share

$1,000

Physician / Practitioner Services

Deductible, Coinsurance, and Copays

Medical / Surgical

Inpatient Facility Svcs (Home Health Care - No Member Cost-Share)

CORE BENEFITS

0%

No member cost-share

Ambulance Services

StndPPOGrpQuote_MAPD_Passive
Renewal_PG_MAPD_Charter Township of Kalamazoo_Op0_2020 Renewal.xlsm Page 3 of 6



July 19, 2019

Effective Date of Coverage

Months of Coverage

Plan Type

Estimated Membership

Option

Option Description

MAPD

Charter Township of Kalamazoo

14

2020 MAPD PPO

January 1, 2020

12

-

0

Schedule B

Included
Cost-Share Same As If Services Were Provided 

in the U.S.

Included Ded,Coins,OOPM Will Apply

X

     Exam (used to measure hearing ability) Included Cost-Share Same As Office Visit above

Hearing Aids - Limit Included Up to $2,500 No Member Cost-Share for these Services

Included No Member Cost-Share for these Services

Included
50% Coinsurance Applies (Does Not 

Accumulate Towards OOPMs)

Included No Member Cost-Share for these Services

59957-600

Cost-Share Same As Chiropractic above

Private Duty Nursing

Chiropractic Enhanced Services

Home Infusion Therapy

Included

Silver Sneakers Fitness Program

Foreign Travel (Not Restricted to Emergency & Urgent Care Only)

Hearing Services

Determination of Refractive State

À la Carte Medical / Surgical Benefits

StndPPOGrpQuote_MAPD_Passive
Renewal_PG_MAPD_Charter Township of Kalamazoo_Op0_2020 Renewal.xlsm Page 4 of 6



July 19, 2019

Effective Date of Coverage

Months of Coverage

Plan Type

Estimated Membership

Option

Option Description

MAPD

Charter Township of Kalamazoo

14

2020 MAPD PPO

January 1, 2020

12

-

0

Schedule B

Formulary Option

(Comprehensive Enhanced, Enhanced, Plus, Standard Enhanced, Standard)

Clinical Edits/Step Therapy:

Deductible:

Preferred Cost-Share Standard Cost-Share

Cost Share $1 $5

32-90 Day Supply Mail Order Copay Multiplier

Minimum / Maximum Charged per Claim
(Only Applicable when Coinsurance Selected; Subject to Copay Multiplier)

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Cost Share $1 $5

32-90 Day Supply Mail Order Copay Multiplier

Minimum / Maximum Charged per Claim
(Only Applicable when Coinsurance Selected; Subject to Copay Multiplier)

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Cost Share $20 $25

32-90 Day Supply Mail Order Copay Multiplier

Minimum / Maximum Charged per Claim
(Only Applicable when Coinsurance Selected; Subject to Copay Multiplier)

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Cost Share $40 $50

32-90 Day Supply Mail Order Copay Multiplier

Minimum / Maximum Charged per Claim
(Only Applicable when Coinsurance Selected; Subject to Copay Multiplier)

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Cost Share $40 $50

Tier 5 Unavailable at 90-day or Mail Order

Minimum / Maximum Charged per Claim
(Only Applicable when Coinsurance Selected; Subject to Copay Multiplier)

Not Applicable Not Applicable

59957-600

2.0 Preferred/2.5 Standard

2.0 Preferred/2.5 Standard
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Pharmacy
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2.0 Preferred/2.5 Standard

2.0 Preferred/2.5 Standard

Comprehensive Formulary

Yes
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2020 MA Rate PMPM:

2020 PD Rate PMPM:

2020 MAPD Rate PMPM:

SIGNATURE: SIGNATURE:

NAME: NAME:

TITLE: TITLE:

DATE: DATE:

SIGNATURE: SIGNATURE:

NAME: NAME:

TITLE: TITLE:

DATE: DATE:

59957-600

Charter Township of Kalamazoo

0

January 1, 2020

December 31, 2020

MEDICARE ADVANTAGE GROUP RENEWAL CONTRACT

2020 SCHEDULE A

GROUP NAME:

OPTION:

CONTRACT EFFECTIVE DATE:

CONTRACT END DATE:

OPTION DESCRIPTION: -

GROUP REPRESENTATIVE(S): BCBSM REPRESENTATIVE(S):

FULLY-INSURED

Your signature below serves as approval for implementation of the rates and Medicare Advantage PPO benefit plan as shown in this document.

FUNDING TYPE:

SIGNATURES

$224.51

$211.61

$436.12

GROUP REPRESENTATIVE(S): BCBSM REPRESENTATIVE(S):

Schedule A_MAPD
Renewal_PG_MAPD_Charter Township of Kalamazoo_Op0_2020 Renewal.xlsm Page 6 of 6



The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn and play. 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 

08122019  10 B

08/12/2019

Audit

Manager

-0-

   X

Finance Administrator Nancy Desai

To accept the audit of the financial statements as prepared and presented by Siegfried Crandall PC.

Support



The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn and play. 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 

08122019  10C

08/12/2019

Room Rental Waiver

 -0-

Karen Woodworth

Approve waiver of the rental fee for a meeting of the Kalamazoo Central Maroon Foundation for a meeting at 
the Westwood community room on 9/23/2019.

Room rental fee would be $100 if not waived.

Support







The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn and play. 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 

08122019  10 D

08/12/2019

 Certificates of Recognition

N/A

Manager Mitchell

To approve the awarding of certificates from the Charter Township of Kalamazoo to Ernest Larsen and Tolene 
Leathers for their many years of service and dedication to the Eastwood Community.

Ernest has been known as the mayor of Eastwood and has been watching over the neighborhood for many 
years. Erlene has also been involved with the Eastwood Neighborhood Association for many years and they 
were both involved in the acquisition of Wilson Recreation Area. The certificates will be presented at the 
Eastwood Block party on August 24, 2019

Support
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August 12, 2019

addition of Sturgis Bank & Trust to 2019 depositiory list

Township Treasurer

-0-

Sherine Miller  - Treasurer

Resolution Authorizing the addition of Sturgis Bank & Trust to the 2019 list of depositories



 Charter Township of Kalamazoo  
 
 Kalamazoo County, Michigan  

 
 

 Resolution to Add Sturgis Bank and Trust  
 

August 12, 2019 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo, Kalamazoo County, 
Michigan   in exercising its fiduciary responsibilities desires to safeguard the funds of the 
Township; and  
 
WHEREAS, Public Act 77 of 1989, as amended, MCL 41.77 provides for the Township Board to 
designate the banks or depositories for the money belonging to the Township, including the time 
for which the deposits shall be made and all details for carrying into effect the authority given in 
said  Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended, MCL 129.91 et seq. requires Township Boards, 
in consultation with the Township Treasurer, to adopt an investment policy; and  
 
WHEREAS the Charter Township of Kalamazoo has adopted an investment policy and has 
designated certain banks as depositories for Township funds; and 
 
WHEREAS the Township Board finds that “Sturgis Bank and Trust” satisfies the statutory criteria 
for inclusion as a depository of Township funds.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that Board of the Charter Township of 
Kalamazoo hereby designates “Sturgis Bank and Trust” as a depository of township funds.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution take effect upon adoption; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Township’s Investment Policy and Depository Resolution is 
retained and supplemented by this designation of “Sturgis Bank and Trust”: as a depository of 
Township funds.    
 
  
Motion was made by _______________________ and seconded by  
 
_________________________  to adopt the foregoing resolution. 
 
Upon roll call vote the following voted ”Aye”: 
 
 
The following voted “Nay”: 
 



The following were absent: 
 
 
The Supervisor declared the motion carried and the resolution duly adopted. 
 

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted 
at a regular meeting of the Kalamazoo Charter Township Board held on 
__________________; that the meeting was conducted and public notice of the meeting was 
given pursuant to and in compliance with the Michigan Open Meetings Act; that a quorum of 
the Board was present and voted in favor of the resolution; and that the minutes of the 
meeting will be or have been made available as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
  
 
 __________________________ 
 Mark E. Miller, Clerk 
 Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
 Kalamazoo County, Michigan 
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